
1 | P ag  e M a g n a. U t a h . g o v    

MAGNA CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

February 25, 2025 

 

 

 

 

Webster Center 
8952 West Magna Main Street  

Magna, Utah 84044 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Magna City Council will hold a meeting for 
presentation, discussion, and possible action at 6:00 PM on the 25th day of February 2025 at the 
Webster Center, 8952 West Magna Main Street Magna, Utah as follows: 

 
** Portions of the meetings may be closed for reasons allowed by statute. Motions relating to any 
of the items listed below, including final action, may be taken. 
 
Anticipated meeting duration: 85 minutes 

 
6:00 PM – PUBLIC MEETING 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. Determine Quorum 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Limited to 3 minutes per person)  

      Any person wishing to comment on any item not otherwise scheduled for a public hearing on 
this evening's agenda, should sign-up on the “Public Comment” form located at the entrance. Persons 
signing up to speak will be called up in the order that they signed-in on the “Public Comment” form.  
Persons addressing the City Council shall step-up to the microphone and give their name for the record. 
The City Council is interested in hearing directly from residents. In an effort to be both transparent and 
responsive, the City Council previously adopted rules to help govern public meetings. As such, 
Councilmembers cannot respond directly to comments during public comment.  However, Magna City 
staff will be responsible for responding directly to citizens who request a response. Should an item on 
tonight's agenda generate a question you would like answered, there is a QR code at the front entrance.  
Please scan the QR code and send your question directly to city staff.  The City Council will not interrupt 
the evening's agenda to take questions from the audience once the formal meeting has commenced.  
Comments should be limited to not more than three (3) minutes unless additional time is authorized by 
the Governing Body. 
 

5. STAKEHOLDER REPORTS 
A. Unified Police Department - Chief Del Craig (5 minutes)  
B. Pleasant Green Cemetery – Sharon Nicholes (5 minutes) 
C. Magna 4th of July - Kari Duckworth (5 minutes) 

 
6. PRESENTATION ITEMS - None 

https://magna.utah.gov/council


2 | P ag  e M a g n a. U t a h . g o v    

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA – Mayor Eric Barney (3 minutes) 
A. Approve City Council Meeting Minutes 

a. February 11, 2025 City Council Meeting 
 

8. COUNCIL BUSINESS: 
A. FY2026 Budget Discussion – Dave Sanderson, Accountant (15 minutes) 
B. Capital Improvement Project Requests – Tolin Hessell, Project Manager (10 minutes) 
C. Consider Resolution R2025-03 Adopting Greater Salt Lake Municipal Services District’s 

Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan – Madison Warner, Municipal Planner (10 
minutes) 

D. Discussion of 2025 Municipal Election Voting Options – David Brickey, City Manager (5 
minutes) 
 

9. MANAGER/CITY ATTORNEY UPDATES (10 minutes)  
 

10. COUNCIL REPORTS (10 minutes) 
 

11. CLOSED SESSIONS IF NEEDED AS ALLOWED PURSUANT TO UTAH CODE §52-4-
205 
A. Discussion of the character, professional competence or physical or mental health of an 

individual. 
B. Strategy sessions to discuss pending or reasonably imminent litigation. 
C. Strategy sessions to discuss the purchase, exchange, or lease of real property. 
D. Discussion regarding deployment of security personnel, devices, or systems; and 
E. Other lawful purposes as listed in Utah Code §52-4-205 

 
12. ADJOURN 

 
 
ZOOM MEETING: Topic: Magna City Council Meeting 
 
When: February 25, 2025, 06:00 PM Mountain Time (US and Canada) 
 
Register in advance for this webinar at: 
https://zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_3r3CGOQxSnSF7mFJeJVwgQ 
 
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar. 

Upon request with three (3) working days’ notice, the Greater Salt Lake Municipal Services District, in 
support of Magna City, will make reasonable accommodations for participation in the meeting. To request 
assistance, please call (385) 377-9466 – TTY 711. 
 
A copy of the foregoing agenda was posted at the following locations on the date posted below: Magna City 
website at https://magna.utah.gov/ and the Utah Public Notice Website at https://www.utah.gov/pmn/. 
Pursuant to State Law and Magna Ordinance, Councilmembers may participate electronically. Pursuant 
to Utah Code § 52-4-205, parts of meetings may be closed for reasons allowed by statute. 
 

POSTED:  February 21, 2025 

https://magna.utah.gov/council
https://zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_3r3CGOQxSnSF7mFJeJVwgQ
https://magna.utah.gov/
https://www.utah.gov/pmn/


 
    MAGNA CITY COUNCIL 
    WORKSHOP MEETING  

 
     February 11, 2025 @ 6:00 PM 
     WEBSTER COMMUNITY CENTER 
     8952 West Magna Main Street 
     Magna, Utah 84044 

 
 

  
MAGNA COUNCIL MEMBERS 

MAYOR ERIC BARNEY, MAYOR PRO TEM AUDREY PIERCE,  
COUNCIL MEMBER TRISH HULL, COUNCIL MEMBER STEVE PROKOPIS,  

COUNCIL MEMBER MICK SUDBURY 

MAGNA CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
**DRAFT MINUTES – UNAPPROVED** 

 
Council Members Present:     Council Member(s) Excused: 
Eric Barney, Mayor        
Steve Prokopis 
Audrey Pierce 
Trish Hull 
Mick Sudbury 
 
Staff Present:  
David Brickey, City Manager 
Paul Ashton, Legal Counsel 
Diana Baun, City Recorder 
Daniel Torres, Economic Development Manager 
Lieutenant Shane Manwaring, UPD 
Chief Del Craig, UPD 
Matt Starley, Long Range Planner 
Lizel Allen, Director of Engineering 
Madison Warner, Municipal Planner 
 
Others Present: 
Kari Duckworth 
 
 
6:00 PM – PUBLIC MEETING 

1. Call to Order 
 
Mayor Barney, presiding, called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 

 
2. Determine Quorum 

 
A quorum was present, allowing the meeting to proceed. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 



 

 
 

Magna City Council • Webster Community Center • 8952 W Magna Main Street • Magna, UT 84044 
 

 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
No public comments. 
 

5. STAKEHOLDER REPORTS 
A. Unified Police Department  

 
Chief Del Craig discussed the January crime statistics, noting a few more calls than previous 
months, but a general reduction overall. They have been analyzing their data a little differently 
to get more specific results, and they will begin a quarterly report, rather than a monthly report, 
beginning in March. 

 
B. Pleasant Green Cemetery - None 

 
C. Magna 4th of July 

 
Kari Duckworth – asked the council if they have any concerns relating to whether the parade 
may or may not happen with the construction; she would like to know of serious concerns 
before they get too far into the parade planning process. Her committee will keep everyone 
involved and updated with their plans. She sent an updated budget to Mayor Barney and David 
Brickey, noting there are some things that can be scaled back if the parade doesn’t happen. 
She would like to know by June 1 whether or not the parade will happen for sure so they can 
change plans. 
 
Mayor Barney asked if there were plans to replace the parade if it can’t go forward, and what 
those plans might be. 
 
Ms. Duckworth responded they can’t really replace the parade, but they will move forward with 
the park activities. She is working with the UPD on options for parade rerouting if needed. 
They could possibly change the parade route if they are done with construction to 8800 W to 
behind Cypress, but anywhere else would make too much of a mess. 

6. PRESENTATION ITEMS – None 
7. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approve City Council Minutes – Mayor Eric Barney 
1. August 13, 2024 City Council Meeting 
2. August 27, 2024 City Council Meeting 
3. September 10, 2024 City Council Meeting 
4. January 28, 2025 City Council Meeting 

B. ChamberWest Invoice – Council Member Trish Hull 



 

 
 

Magna City Council • Webster Community Center • 8952 W Magna Main Street • Magna, UT 84044 
 

Council Member Hull moved to approve the full consent agenda as published. Council 
Member Pierce seconded the motion; vote was 5-0, unanimous in favor. 

Council Member Prokopis asked to revisit the ChamberWest membership annually. The 
council was in agreement with that plan as discussed previously.  

 

8. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
A. FY2026 Administrative Budget Discussion – Dave Sanderson, Accountant 

 
Mr. Sanderson was unable to make it due to extenuating circumstances, this item will be 
moved to the February 25, 2025 Business Meeting Agenda. 
 

B. Capital Improvement Project Requests – Tolin Hessel, Project Manager 
 
Tolin Hessel reviewed his spreadsheet and map from the packet published prior to tonight’s 
meeting. He reviewed the current Magna project requests on the list and their priorities. He 
specifically discussed the RAISE Grant awarded last year for sidewalk improvements 
 
Council Member Prokopis doesn’t remember having a discussion about these project requests, 
noting that all the requested projects are in District 1. He has needs in his district as well and 
did not recall being asked for information on any of them, noting that lighting along 3100 South 
from 8000 W to 7200 W is a priority and he was never given the opportunity to give his input 
on those types of needs. 
 
Mayor Barney responded that he filled out the project requests based on the council’s 
agreement to prioritize Main Street, any road from 8400 W to the mountains, and street lighting 
improvements; the worst areas for those items just happen to be in District 1. He also noted 
that 3100 South from 7200 W to 9000 W is on the list as #3. 
 
Council Member Sudbury also inquired whether they were trying to plan for resurfacing to align 
with other projects so they aren’t doing the same things twice, or paying to redo recent work. It 
was confirmed the MSD is working with other entities to ensure efficiency with those projects. 
 
The council discussed the projects, noting the RAISE Grant projects were prioritized because 
of the available grant funds. 
 
Council Member Hull expressed concern, noting that she was under the impression the RAISE 
funds were only for sidewalks on Main Street. 
 
Mr. Hessel responded that the grant does have to be used for sidewalk repairs and road 
improvements in a specified part of the city, but they had not chosen that area yet. He 
continued reviewing the spreadsheet and maps with the proposed projects, noting that these 



 

 
 

Magna City Council • Webster Community Center • 8952 W Magna Main Street • Magna, UT 84044 
 

projects are being presented to the MSD Board for approval before anything starts since they 
are being funded by the MSD funds. 
 
Mr. Hessel continued reviewing the requested projects and the priorities suggested by MSD 
Staff. 
 
Council Member Sudbury asked if the council could discuss these projects more in general 
during their upcoming retreat and get back to the MSD with their comments/suggestions. 
 
David Brickey responded that the MSD Staff needs the council’s response by March 11. 
 

C. 8400 W and Cordero Drive, and SR 111 South Corridor Update – Daniel Torres, 
Economic Development Manager 

 
Daniel Torres stated that this presentation is the results of many months’ worth of meetings 
and discussion, including collaboration with UDOT, Ivory Homes and an effort to coordinate 
efforts so concerns and requests are being addressed. There are three to four projects 
happening on 8400 W that will be addressed in this presentation. 
 
Matt Starley, Long Range Planner reviewed his prepared presentation and additional 
information (Attachment A). The three active corridor projects being discussed today are the 
proposed HAWK Signal relocation, west rail crossing design, and the Cordero four-way lighted 
intersection. They will also give some management updates along the corridor, including 
access categories and proposed speed limits, and recommendations from Magna for UDOT 
requests. 
 
Council Member Hull asked about the realignment of the crossing with the HAWK Signal 
relocation, and the potential for kids still crossing in that area, expressing concern. 
 
Mr. Torres responded they are meeting with UPD and UDOT on this and that will be a part of 
the discussion, along with continued discussions with Granite School District. 
 
Mr. Starley also indicated he would pass on the concerns to Salt Lake County Parks and Rec 
in relation to the trails. He moved on to discuss the west rail crossing design and continued 
reviewing Attachment A with those details. They are also working with Granite School District 
on this project. Fastenal will be doing their improvements, but he was unsure if those will be 
the multi-use path or just a sidewalk. The last project update was the four-way signal 
intersection at Cordero Drive. He shared the initial design received from UDOT after 
collaboration with stakeholders, noting that communication is still ongoing regarding the project 
coming together. There are still discussions regarding the shoulders and sizes of roadways on 
plans. 
 
Daniel Torres shared a draft letter of appreciation for UDOT partners (Attachment B), asking 
the council to review and approve the letter. He would like to leverage the council’s political 



 

 
 

Magna City Council • Webster Community Center • 8952 W Magna Main Street • Magna, UT 84044 
 

weight to address the next presentation from Mr. Starley, and this letter is the best way to start 
that. 
 
Mr. Starley moved on to discuss the management of the projects and plans, as outlined in 
Attachment A. He discussed proposed access categories and how they would like to see the 
newer roads being categorized. UDOT would like above the railroad crossing to be 35 mph, 
and below the railroad crossing to be 45 mph. MSD Staff would like to request a consistent 
corridor designation and speed between 3500 South and 4100 South, making that a category 
5 road the whole way through and allowing for additional right only turn outs. This would mean 
more intersections available in the future. 
 
Council Member Hull asked about potential median upgrades in that area. 
 
Mr. Torres responded they are working with UDOT and have presented some options for 
pedestrian median islands or other landscaping. Due to UDOT’s funding and timeframes for 
construction, they are currently set in their plans and are not considering additional 
adjustments. 
 
Mr. Starley encouraged the council members to review the draft (Attachment A) and reach out 
to himself or Daniel Torres with feedback. 
 
Council Member Hull asked about finishing the road that will serve as an entrance/exit for the 
new school location, and whether that will be completed as agreed upon. 
 
David Brickey responded that there has been lobbying with the legislature for projects like this, 
and there is significant money waiting for utilization, but it is based on repayment. This means 
the work has to be completed before the money can be paid out. Mr. Gamvroulas with Ivory 
Homes has reached out to Mr. Brickey to ask if the money is available, and Mr. Brickey has 
responded that Ivory needs to finish the road before that money can be paid. Mr. Brickey 
believes part of the challenge is West Valley being in control of the road, but the money being 
allocated to Magna. It has to be built to West Valley’s standards, and Magna has to reimburse 
their city for that. He is communicating with all the parties involved every chance he gets to 
express the concerns and ensure it is done before the school opens, because that connection 
is significant.  
 
Council Member Prokopis indicated the council would review the appreciation letter 
(Attachment B) during their retreat coming up and getting back to Mr. Torres within a week. 
 

D. Greater Salt Lake Municipal Services District’s Comprehensive Emergency 
Management Plan – Madison Warner, Municipal Planner 

 
Madison Warner reviewed her prepared presentation included in the packet published prior to 
the meeting regarding the MSD’s proposed Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan 
(CEMP). 
 



 

 
 

Magna City Council • Webster Community Center • 8952 W Magna Main Street • Magna, UT 84044 
 

Council Member Pierce noted this plan creates an extra layer between the City of Magna and 
Salt Lake County resources, that layer being the MSD. The current Emergency Operations 
Plan (EOP) for Magna contains lots of template wording, but the CEMP includes broader 
categories and definitions. She also believes this will work with previously discussed issues 
like locations of shelters. 
 
Ms. Warner continued reviewing the MSD’s Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan 
presentation, discussing how annexes will be added to the plan, if adopted, to address specific 
hazards within the city. The CEMP does not require additional funding from the city, and she 
shared how the CEMP will help build long-term resilience, reduce vulnerability in the 
community, simplify unnecessary language from the current EOP, and allow the city’s plan to 
be customized for their specific needs. 
 
Council Member Hull asked if the NIMS training was still required, even with the CEMP. 
 
Ms. Warner responded yes, part of her job is to help councils with those trainings and 
recommend additional training for elected officials that could be helpful in the future. 
 
Council Member Pierce asked about CERT Training and how it is a priority for their council, 
expressing their desire to bring that program back. The county used to provide that training for 
the city, and now the city will have to work out paying for it themselves or coordinating with 
other entities. She also suggested working with the MSD to coordinate with other cities on 
those types of training and supply buildup.  
 
Council Member Hull noted that there are still problems from the earthquake 5 years ago that 
the council is still trying to resolve or figure out how to deal with. She asked about 
communication and how they can work on some of those issues before another emergency. 
 
Ms. Warner noted that they are already working on things like that to bring before the council 
as training and discussion if this is passed. The CEMP is a solid foundation to begin those 
discussions and start working on those specific plans. 
 

9. CITY MANAGER/CITY ATTORNEY UPDATES 
 
David Brickey stated the retreat is scheduled from 8am until around 4pm this Saturday at the 
Webster Center. 
 
Dan Torres discussed the Spring Removal event. He has spoken to ACE Recycling & Waste 
Services, who indicated the spring dates may not be feasible. He asked about both a Spring 
cleanup event and dumpster removal. Regarding the Spring Removal, he has some 
documents he still needs to review, but he asked his contact for their professional opinion on 
servicing a community of about 30,000 to 40,000. The response was about 14 dumpsters 
would be needed for the service over a weekend. There are some moving pieces, which 
include scheduling it against other communities, tipping fees, etc. They would have to work out 
the costs for all the parts and discuss which landfill everything would be taken to with ACE’s 



 

 
 

Magna City Council • Webster Community Center • 8952 W Magna Main Street • Magna, UT 84044 
 

tipping fees. There were also discussions regarding management of the sites, as none of their 
contracts include cleanup if the dumpsters fill up and trash is left on the pavement. He is 
hoping to have a better analysis of that by Saturday. They also discussed a dumpster rollout 
program, similar to the current Wasatch Waste & Recycling program and he can come back 
with thoughts on that at a later date. He believes that one is not feasible in the near future but 
does think it is worth looking at for consideration. 
 
Council Member Sudbury would prefer to see a few dumpsters placed in certain areas each 
month, rotating the locations so everyone has a turn. 
 
David Brickey stated they only want to leave dumpsters out for one day, which avoids pile up 
and overflow. He forwarded a story on Channel 13 about the realignment at 2700 and 2820, 
which can be viewed at the following link: https://www.fox13now.com/news/driven-to-
change/what-has-magna-residents-so-angry-nervous-about-traffic-intersection and noted for 
the community that this council has been working on this redesign for over a year and a half. 
The city council has acquired two properties to facilitate this. MSD Engineers are moving 
forward with the redesign and hoping to have shovels in the ground this summer or by the end 
of this summer. The council has worked hard to get this moved up almost two years from the 
original three-year window and he wants those reading this to understand the council did the 
hard work for this to be done, not the Governor or his office. The city’s website design is 
moving forward, color and layout are being addressed and he asked for feedback from the 
council for additional changes. The signage for the park and cemetery are currently being built 
in Texas and will be on their way when finished. 
 
Paul Ashton had no updates. 
 

10.   COUNCIL REPORTS  
 
 

11. CLOSED SESSIONS IF NEEDED AS ALLOWED PURSUANT TO UTAH CODE §52-4-
205 
A. Discussion of the character, professional competence or physical or 

mental health of an individual. 
B. Strategy sessions to discuss pending or reasonably imminent litigation. 
C. Strategy sessions to discuss the purchase, exchange, or lease of real property. 
D. Discussion regarding deployment of security personnel, devices, or systems; and 
E. Other lawful purposes as listed in Utah Code §52-4-205 

 
Council Member Hull moved to recess the regular Council Meeting and move to a 
Closed Session for the topics indicated above. Council Member Pierce seconded the 
motion; vote was 5-0, unanimous in favor. 
 
Council Member Sudbury moved to adjourn the Closed Session and return to the 
regular Council Meeting. Council Member Hull seconded the motion; vote was 5-0, 
unanimous in favor. 

https://www.fox13now.com/news/driven-to-change/what-has-magna-residents-so-angry-nervous-about-traffic-intersection
https://www.fox13now.com/news/driven-to-change/what-has-magna-residents-so-angry-nervous-about-traffic-intersection


 

 
 

Magna City Council • Webster Community Center • 8952 W Magna Main Street • Magna, UT 84044 
 

 
12. ADJOURN 

 
Council Member Hull moved to adjourn the February 11, 2025 Magna City Council 
Meeting. Council Member Sudbury seconded the motion; vote was 5-0, unanimous in 
favor. 
 
The February 11, 2025 Magna City Council Meeting adjourned at 8:23 PM 
 
This is a true and correct copy of the February 11, 2025 City Council Meeting Minutes, 
which were approved on February 25, 2025. 
 
 
Attest:  
             

        Eric Barney, Magna City Mayor 
 
Diana Baun, Magna City Recorder  
 



Magna City
Budget Report Yearly 58.60% 1/31/2025

 Actual to FY 2024

Revenues 1/31/2025 Budget Projected
Municipal Telecom franchise tax 9,763                      -                             50,000                   
Municipal Electric franchise tax 95,063                    -                             500,000                 
Municipal Natural Gas franchise tax 103,733                  -                             500,000                 
Sales taxes 3,500,376               5,450,000              6,000,000              
Google franchise tax 4,845                      -                             100,000                 
Grants  -                              200,000                 200,000                 
Transportation sales tax 303,974                  525,000                 525,000                 
Class C road funds 710,867                  1,200,000              1,200,000              
Corridor preservation funds 56,250                    -                             56,250                   
Liquor allotment -                              -                             -                             
Cares Act -                              -                             -                             
ARPA funding 565,275                  2,865,883              2,865,883              
Business License 35,178                    50,000                   50,000                   
Building permits 668,512                  1,250,000              1,250,000              
Other permits -                              21,000                   21,000                   
Sewer and water permits -                              5,000                     5,000                     
Zoning - land use permit -                              75,000                   75,000                   
Engineering services 30,798                    50,000                   50,000                   
Planning service 28,072                    500,000                 500,000                 
Storm drain fee -                              -                             -                             
Code enforcement fines 5,910                      5,000                     6,500                     
Justice court fines 107,186                  175,000                 175,000                 
Interest earnings 123,788                  75,000                   175,000                 
Miscellaneous 1,572                      15,000                   15,000                   
Transfers in 1,061,209               1,060,009              1,061,209              
Total Revenues 7,412,371$           13,521,892$       15,380,842$        

Expenses - Administration
Wages 149,037                  279,700                 279,700                 
Employee Benefits 43,164                    79,030                   79,030                   
Awards, promotional & meals 570                         2,000                     2,000                     
Subscriptions/Memberships 830                         24,330                   24,330                   
Printing/Publications/Advertising 292                         8,000                     8,000                     
Travel/Mileage -                              2,500                     2,500                     
Cell phone and telephone 1,981                      -                             2,000                     
Office expense and supplies 505                         6,200                     * 6,200                     
Computer equipment/Software -                              10,000                   10,000                   
Attorney-Civil 32,673                    75,000                   75,000                   
Attorney-Land use -                              30,000                   30,000                   
Training & Seminars 425                         17,500                   17,500                   
Web page development/Maintenance 2,860                      19,745                   19,745                   
Software/Streaming 15,176                    5,000                     * 20,000                   
Payroll processing fees 303                         5,000                     5,000                     
Grant charged expense -                              -                             -                             
Communications 50                           10,000                   10,000                   
Credit card and bank expenses 312                         -                             1,000                     
Contribution/Special events 60,743                    172,000                 172,000                 
Insurance 21,104                    26,000                   26,000                   
Workers comp insurance 130                         2,500                     2,500                     
Postage 2,323                      20,000                   20,000                   
Professional and technical 12,012                    89,504                   89,504                   
UFA emergency services -                              -                             -                             
Grant related 1,000                      -                             1,000                     
SL (Client) County Support Services -                              30,500                   30,500                   
Equipment/Computer purchases -                              7,500                     7,500                     
Beer funds -                              -                             -                             



 Actual to FY 2024
Expenses-continued 1/31/2025 Budget Projected
Rent 7,779                      133,000                 133,000                 
Non classified expenses 294                         5,000                     5,000                     
Total Administration 399,251$              1,060,009$         1,079,009$          

Budget Report Yearly 58.60% 1/31/2025

Expenses - Transfers
Contribution to GF 5,578,528                9,596,000              9,596,000              
ARPA expenses 565,275                   2,865,883              2,865,883              
Transfer to Capital projects -                              -                             -                             
Total Transfers 6,143,803$           12,461,883$       12,461,883$        

Total Expenses 6,543,054$           13,521,892$       13,540,892$        

Surplus/Deficit 869,317$         -$                    1,839,950$     

58.60% 1/31/2025



Pleasant Green Cemetery

 Actual to FY 2024

Revenues 1/31/2025 Budget Projected

Sale of lots 15,162                    20,000                   18,000                   

Grave openings 4,900                      20,000                   15,000                   

Other revenue 4,735                      4,500                     4,735                     

Transfers In -                              -                             -                             

Total Revenues 24,797$                44,500$              37,735$               

Expenses - Administration

Grave opening expenses 6,025                      -                             7,500                     

Cremation expenses 2,500                      -                             3,000                     

Office supplies -                              -                             -                             

Utilities - water -                              -                             -                             

Travel/Mileage -                              -                             -                             

Computer equipment/Software -                              2,500                     2,500                     

Professional and technical 33,294                    42,000                   50,000                   

Sundry charges -                              -                             -                             

Total Administration 41,819$                44,500$              63,000$               

Total Expenses 41,819$                44,500$              63,000$               

Surplus/Deficit (17,022)$          -$                    (25,265)$         



Communities that Care

 Actual to FY 2024

Revenues 1/31/2025 Budget Projected

Intergovernmental -                              -                             -                             

Operating transfers in -                              -                             -                             

State Liquor allotment 56,162                    20,000                   56,162                   

Grants -Substane Use Disorder 8,333                      125,000                 125,000                 

Grants - Magna CTC -                              125,000                 125,000                 

Grants- Safety & Success 259,067                  500,000                 500,000                 

Grants- Youth advocay 31,598                    -                             35,000                   

Donations -                              -                             -                             

Other revenue -                              -                             2,500                     

Total Revenues 355,160$              770,000$            843,662$             

Expenses - Administration

Wages 81,133                    65,000                   100,000                 

Employee Benefits 17,726                    30,000                   30,000                   

Social Security Tax -                              -                             -                             

Medicare -                              -                             -                             

Medical Insurance -                              -                             -                             

Retirement Contribution -                              -                             -                             

Liquor funds -                              -                             -                             

Awards 2,836                      -                             3,000                     

Subscriptions\Memberships -                              -                             -                             

Travel/Mileage 21,223                    -                             25,000                   

Office Expense and Supplies 991                         -                             1,000                     

Training and seminars -                              -                             -                             

Contractors 3,684                      -                             4,000                     

Programs (Afterschool) 1,280                      -                             1,500                     

Communications & PR 630                         -                             1,000                     

Events 6,368                      -                             7,500                     

Youth coalition 390                         -                             500                        

Sponsorships 6,197                      -                             7,500                     

School support website -                              1,500                     

Youth court 2,310                      2,500                     

Safety & success 115,255                  500,000                 500,000                 

Safety & success contractors 5,378                      -                             6,000                     

Beer funds -                              20,000                   20,000                   

Reserves -                              30,000                   30,000                   

Total Administration 265,401$              645,000$            741,000$             

Total Expenses 265,401$              645,000$            741,000$             

Surplus/Deficit 89,759$           125,000$        102,662$        



Administration

 

Administration Final Tentative

 Actual Budget Budget

 FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

184,305$          191,700$       338,700$          76.7%

60,000              88,000           105,100            19.4%

67,238              79,030           140,780            78.1%

1,541                2,000             2,000                0.0%

18,036              24,330           27,830              14.4%

1,358                8,000             4,000                -50.0%

2,030                2,500             2,500                0.0%

Office expense and supplies 624                   6,200             14,750              137.9%

Computer equipment/software/Cell 6,017                10,000           7,500                -25.0%

Attorney-civil 59,398              75,000           90,000              20.0%

Attorney-land use -                        30,000           35,000              16.7%

Training and seminars 1,914                17,500           5,000                -71.4%

Web page development/maintenance 7,902                19,745           9,745                -50.6%

Software/streaming 16,629              5,000             17,500              250.0%

Payroll processing fees 652                   1,100             1,100                0.0%

Grant charged expense 4,000                -                     -                        0.0%

Communications 1,186                10,000           10,000              0.0%

Contributions/special events 79,421              172,000         160,000            -7.0%

Insurance 1,962                26,000           26,000              0.0%

Workers comp insurance 1,120                2,500             3,750                50.0%

Postage 4,070                20,000           10,000              -50.0%

Professional and technical 77,320              89,504           112,000            25.1%

UFA emergency services 26,532              -                     -                        0.0%

Grant related 5,000                -                     -                        0.0%

SL (Client) county support services 20,008              30,500           35,000              14.8%

Equipment/computer purchases 287                   7,500             -                        -100.0%

Alcohol remediation -                        -                     -                        0.0%

Rent/remodel/utilities 18,550              133,000         40,000              -69.9%

Non classified expenses 16                     5,000             -                        -100.0%

667,116$          1,056,109$    1,198,255$       13.5%

 

Account Name

Council wages

Employee benefits

Awards, recognition

Subscriptions, memberships

Magna Township

FY 2026

 

SUMMARY

% 

Printing/publications/advertising

Travel/mileage

City Manager wages

Totals:



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

184,305            191,700         191,700            0.0%

   

  55,000               

  92,000               

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

184,305            191,700         338,700            76.7%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

184,305            191,700         338,700            76.7%

General

Administration

%Wages

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

 

Line Item Description Detail

City Manager

(6.5% increase)

Admin Assistant

Administrative Manager

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Magna Township
FY 2026

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

Deletions

 



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

60,000              16,000           16,000              0.0%

16,000           16,000               

 16,000           16,000               

 16,000           16,000               

 24,000           24,000               

  8,000                 

  1,300                 

  1,300                 

  1,300                 

  1,300                 

  1,300                 

  1,300                 

Planning Commission/Alternates  1,300                 

60,000              88,000           105,100            19.4%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

60,000              88,000           105,100            19.4%

Magna Township
FY 2026

General

Administration

%Council wages

Magna Mayor

Magna Council 1/2

Planning Commission

Planning Commission

Planning Commission

Planning Commission

 

Line Item Description Detail

Magna Council

Magna Council

Magna Council

Magna Council

Totals:

Additions

Planning Commission

Planning Commission/Alternates

Deletions

 

 

Totals:

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

11,000              14,750           16,500              11.9%

30,877              30,600           30,600              0.0%

25,361              20,000           20,000               

13,680           13,680              

25,000              

Administrative Manager 35,000              

67,238              79,030           140,780            78.1%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

67,238              79,030           140,780            78.1%

Administration

%Employee benefits

 

Line Item Description Detail

Council benefits

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

City Manger benefits (retirement)

City Manager benefits (Health Insurance)

City Manager benefits (taxes)

Admin Assistant

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Deletions

 



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

1,541                2,000             2,000                0.0%

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

     

   

1,541                2,000             2,000                0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

1,541                2,000             2,000                0.0%

 

Line Item Description Detail

For appreciation of former planning

commissioners and elected officials

 

 

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Awards, recognition

Totals:

Additions

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deletions

 

 

Totals:

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

18,036              740                740                   0.0%

AICP - Council  340                340                   0.0%

Utah League of Cities & Towns  17,000           17,000              0.0%

Utah State Bar  4,250             4,250                0.0%

Contingency for increased costs above  2,000             2,000                0.0%

ChamberWest   3,500                 

     

      

     

     

     

     

     

     

    

    

    

 

18,036              24,330           27,830              14.4%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

18,036              24,330           27,830              14.4%

%Subscriptions, memberships

 

Line Item Description Detail

AICP - Planning Commission

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

 

  

 

Administration

Totals:

Deletions

 

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

1,358                8,000             4,000                -50.0%

    

    

    

    

    

 

1,358                8,000             4,000                -50.0%
 

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

 

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

1,358                8,000             4,000                -50.0%

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Printing/publications/advertising

 

 

 

 

Line Item Description Detail

Business cards, postcards etc

 

 

 

Totals:

Additions

Deletions

 

 

Totals:

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

Mileage/ Air fare reimbursement 2,030                2,500             2,500                0.0%

    

     

     

     

    

 

2,030                2,500             2,500                0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

2,030                2,500             2,500                0.0%

Administration

%Travel/mileage

 

Line Item Description Detail

 

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Totals:

Additions

 

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Deletions

 



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

624                   5,000             5,000                0.0%

1,000             2,500                

50                  5,000                

50                  -                        

50                  -                        

50                  -                        

 2,250                

624                   6,200             14,750              137.9%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

624                   6,200             14,750              137.9%

Magna Township

Line Item Description Detail

Office supplies

Small equipment

Copier/printer

 

 

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Office expense and supplies

 

 

Computer/Mayor

Totals:

Deletions

Totals:

Additions

 

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

 

Totals:



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

2,521                10,000           5,000                -50.0%

Cell phone 3,496                2,500                

    

      

6,017                10,000           7,500                -25.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

6,017                10,000           7,500                -25.0%

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Computer equipment/software/Cell

 

Line Item Description Detail

Software/ I pads replacement

Totals:

Additions

 

Deletions

 

 

Totals:

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

59,398              75,000           90,000              20.0%

59,398              75,000           90,000              20.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

59,398              75,000           90,000              20.0%

Administration

%Attorney-civil

 

Line Item Description Detail

Contracted attorney services firm

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Deletions

 



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

-                        30,000           35,000              16.7%

 

-                        30,000           35,000              16.7%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        30,000           35,000              16.7%

 

Line Item Description Detail

Contracted attorney services firm

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Attorney-land use

 

 

 

Totals:

Totals:

Additions

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Deletions

 



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

Training & seminars 1,914                -                     -                        0.0%

    

    

 2,000             2,000                 

    

 15,500           3,000                 

    

    

    

     

1,914                17,500           5,000                -71.4%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

1,914                17,500           5,000                -71.4%

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

April, St George $250 each

 

ULCT Mid Year Conference

Aprils St. George  395 each

Administration

%Training and seminars

 

Line Item Description Detail

 

UCMA Spring Conference

Totals:

Additions

 

Room approximately $200 two

nights

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Deletions

 



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

7,902                10,000           -                        -100.0%

Muni ordinance & Code  1,452             1,452                 

Civic Plus  8,293             8,293                 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 

7,902                19,745           9,745                -50.6%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

7,902                19,745           9,745                -50.6%

 

Line Item Description Detail

Development

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Web page development/maintenance

 

Totals:

Totals:

Additions

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Deletions

 



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

16,629              5,000             17,500              250.0%

    

    

16,629              5,000             17,500              250.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

16,629              5,000             17,500              250.0%

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

 

 

Administration

%Software/streaming

 

Line Item Description Detail

Zoom and equipment

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Deletions

 



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

652                   1,100             1,100                0.0%

    

    

     

    

 

652                   1,100             1,100                0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

652                   1,100             1,100                0.0%

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Payroll processing fees

 

Line Item Description Detail

Outside payroll processing fees

 

Deletions

 

 

Totals:

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Additions

 



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

4,000                -                     -                        0.0%

preparation     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

4,000                -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

4,000                -                     -                        0.0%

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Totals:

Additions

 

Administration

%Grant charged expense

 

Line Item Description Detail

Grant charges overhead for grant

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Deletions

 



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

1,186                -                     -                        0.0%

10,000           10,000               

   

   

   

    

   

1,186                10,000           10,000              0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

1,186                10,000           10,000              0.0%

Social Media

Magna newsletter

Printing

MSD Newsletter

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Communications

 

 

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Deletions

 

 

Totals:

Totals:

Additions

10-4200-740

Line Item Description Detail



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

64,421              65,000           70,000              7.7%

15,000              5,000             -                        -100.0%

5,000             -                        -100.0%

25,000           30,000              20.0%

7,000             -                        -100.0%

-                     -                        0.0%

50,000           50,000              0.0%

5,000             5,000                0.0%

10,000           -                        -100.0%

5,000                

79,421              172,000         160,000            -7.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

79,421              172,000         160,000            -7.0%

Deletions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

Magna Museum

Magna town council

Magna chamber of commerce

Magna - Yuzawa educational

Magna in motion

Arts council of Magna

Events: Copper days

UPD youth academy

Magna Kearns Youth Court

(grant funding from other sources)

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Contributions/special events

 

Line Item Description Detail

Magna 4th of July



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

1,962                25,000           25,000              0.0%

1,000             1,000                0.0%

   

   

   

    

   

1,962                26,000           26,000              0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

1,962                26,000           26,000              0.0%

Deletions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

Fidelity bonding (Treasurer)

 

 

 

 

 

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Insurance

 

Line Item Description Detail

General liability (ULCT)



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

1,120                2,500             3,750                50.0%

   

   

   

   

   

   

1,120                2,500             3,750                50.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

1,120                2,500             3,750                50.0%

Deletions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

 

 

 

 

 

 

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Workers comp insurance

 

Line Item Description Detail

Workers compensation insurance



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

4,070                -                     -                        0.0%

10,000           10,000               

10,000           -                         

   

   

    

   

4,070                20,000           10,000              -50.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

4,070                20,000           10,000              -50.0%

Deletions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

Newsletters

MSD Newsletter

 

 

 

 

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Postage

 

Line Item Description Detail

Stamps costs mailing out



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

77,320              -                     -                        0.0%

 26,004           -                        -100.0%

 18,000           18,000              0.0%

 18,000           -                        -100.0%

 7,500             72,000              860.0%

 18,000           20,000              100.0%

2,000             2,000                100.0%

-                        

77,320              89,504           112,000            25.1%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

77,320              89,504           112,000            25.1%

Deletions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

Coalition

Accounting services

Assistant admin

Lobbyist services

IT support

Contingency on above increased prices

 

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Professional and technical

 

Line Item Description Detail

Township administration (full time now)



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

26,532              -                     -                        0.0%

   

   

   

   

    

   

26,532              -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

26,532              -                     -                        0.0%

Deletions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

 

 

 

 

 

 

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%UFA emergency services

 

Line Item Description Detail

Fees



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

5,000                -                     -                        0.0%

   

   

   

   

    

   

5,000                -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

5,000                -                     -                        0.0%

Deletions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

 

 

 

 

 

 

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Grant related

 

Line Item Description Detail

 



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

20,008              25,000           -                        -100.0%

4,000             -                        -100.0%

1,500             -                        -100.0%

-                     35,000               

   

    

   

20,008              30,500           35,000              14.8%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

20,008              30,500           35,000              14.8%

Deletions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

SLCO supervisor

SLCO addressing

Elections

 

 

 

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%SL (Client) county support services

 

Line Item Description Detail

SLCO clerk



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

287                   1,500             -                        -100.0%

1,500             -                         

4,500             -                         

   

   

    

   

287                   7,500             -                        -100.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

287                   7,500             -                        -100.0%

Deletions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

Phones new

Computers

 

 

 

 

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Equipment/computer purchases

 

Line Item Description Detail

I pads new



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

    

    

    

    

    

    

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

Deletions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

 

 

 

 

 

 

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Alcohol remediation

 

Line Item Description Detail

Alcohol funds- Magna United



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

18,550              18,000           -                        -100.0%

40,000           40,000               

75,000           -                         

   

   

   

   

   

18,550              133,000         40,000              -69.9%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

18,550              133,000         40,000              -69.9%

Deletions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

Utilities (own their own city hall)

Remodel

 

 

 

 

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Rent/remodel/utilities

 

Line Item Description Detail

Webster Center



Administration

Fund:

Department: Final Tentative

Account Name: Actual Budget Budget

Account Number: FY 2024 FY 2025 FY 2026 Diff.

16                     5,000             -                        -100.0%

    

    

    

    

    

   

16                     5,000             -                        -100.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

-                        -                     -                        0.0%

16                     5,000             -                        -100.0%

Deletions

 

Totals:

Net Change in Budget Requests:

Proposed New Budget:

Totals:

Additions

 

Totals:

above contingency

 

 

 

 

 

Magna Township

FY 2026

General

Administration

%Non classified expenses

 

Line Item Description Detail

Miscellaneous expenses not classified



Transition from EOP (Emergency 
Operations Plan) to a CEMP 
(Comprehensive Emergency 
Management Plan)

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Introduction:Good evening, Mayor city Council members. I am here today to discuss an important transition in our city's emergency management strategy. We are proposing to shift from our current Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) to a Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP).Our main objective today is to seek your approval for adopting this new and improved CEMP to better protect and prepare our community.



Incident Flow/Management

 Incidents start & end at the local jurisdictional level in a 
bottom-up approach

 Requests for help escalates up the levels once current 
resources have been or projected to be exhausted 

 Cities/towns will request additional help through MSD who 
can then request from SLCo if needed

 Cities/towns will activate their EOC, declare an emergency & 
and coordinate resources, information, etc. as they come 
from MSD/SLCo

 Must follow these guidelines (+ ICS, NIMS, etc) to simplify 
interagency coordination and to be eligible for federal/state 
grants for response/recovery

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
This plan adheres to NIMS (National Incident Management System) A Format to simplify inter-agency coordination and to qualify for FEMA funding.





Municipal Planner Position

Roles:
 Assist in the development of emergency 

plans for MSD & cities/towns with the 
guidance of SLCo EM

 Train core city/town staff on these plans & to 
coordinate emergency support functions

 Assist at the city/town & MSD level of EOC in 
an incident as a liaison to SLCo EM

 Funded by the MSD & managed/overseen 
jointly by MSD & SLCo EM (branch of UFA) *NOT an emergency MANAGER role. Cities/towns must have their 

designated EM that we train and coordinate with

 One full time & one part time employee



Limitations of the current Emergency Operations Plan 
(EOP)

 Reactive-Approach:
 EOP focuses mainly on response and 

recovery, lacking proactive measures

 Scope:
 Limited to specific emergency scenarios, not 

a comprehensive plan.

 Integration:
 Does not fully integrate all phases of 

emergency management: mitigation, 
preparedness, response, and recovery

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Since 2020 our current EOP has served us well, it has several limitations that need to be addressed.Reactive Approach: The EOP focuses mainly on response and recovery efforts after an emergency has occurred, lacking proactive measures for prevention and preparedness.Scope: The EOP is designed for specific emergency scenarios and doesn't cover the full range of potential hazards our community might face.Integration: It does not fully integrate all phases of emergency management—mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery—leading to potential gaps in our emergency management strategy.



Benefits of the Comprehensive Emergency 
Management Plan (CEMP)

 Proactive-Approach:
 Emphasizes all five phases of emergency management

 Comprehensive Scope:
 Covers a wide range of potential hazards and scenarios

 Integration and coordination:
 Enhances coordination among various agencies and stakeholders

 Community Resilience:
 Builds long-term resilience and reduces vulnerability

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
In contrast, the CEMP offers a more holistic and proactive approach to emergency management."Proactive Approach: The CEMP emphasizes not just response and recovery, but also mitigation and preparedness, helping us to prevent emergencies and be better prepared when they do occur.Comprehensive Scope: It covers a wide range of potential hazards, ensuring that we are prepared for any type of emergency.Integration and Coordination: The CEMP enhances coordination among various agencies and stakeholders, ensuring a unified and efficient response.Community Resilience: By focusing on all phases of emergency management, the CEMP builds long-term resilience and reduces our community's vulnerability to disasters.



What is  a "CEMP"?

A Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP) is a strategic and all-encompassing 
document created by government agencies, organizations, or jurisdictions to prepare for and 
respond to a wide range of emergencies and disasters. The CEMP serves as a roadmap for 
effectively managing emergencies, addressing various phases of emergency management, and 
coordinating the efforts of multiple stakeholders. 

Today, many jurisdictions utilize the CEMP as the jurisdiction’s EOP as it provides broader guidance 
in describing the jurisdiction’s overall emergency management program. 

The CEMP also contains jurisdiction-specific annexes that provide customized guidance to each 
city/town. However, most hazards we face are county-wide, which is a major benefit of adopting the 
CEMP vs. writing a full Emergency Operations plan specific to just one jurisdiction.

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
The base plan provides information regarding policy and operations focused on coordination, command and control structures, roles and responsibilities, procedures, and resources for the County and its agencies that support response, recovery, preparedness, and mitigation for all hazards.This plan is intended to be used as a guiding document when executing response or recovery operations during a disaster or emergency and to guide preparedness and mitigation operations. This plan is based upon the concept that the emergency functions for municipal departments, functions or groups will generally parallel their normal day-to-day functions. To the extent possible, the same personnel and material resources will be employed in both cases.



What is in a "CEMP"?

The base plan provides information regarding policy and operations focused on 
coordination, command and control structures, roles and responsibilities, procedures, 
and resources for the County and its agencies that support response, recovery, 
preparedness, and mitigation for all hazards.

The ESF and RSF checklists provide an overview of each of the 15 ESFs and six RSFs and 
include step-by-step actions for activation, response, and recovery operations. The 
checklists are contained in the Emergency Support Functions and Recovery Support 
Functions Handbook.

The hazard-specific annexes describe unique aspects, actions, and
considerations for specific hazards.

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
6 RSF - Infrastructure Systems Recovery Support Function. ...Economic Recovery Support Function.Housing Recovery Support ...Natural & Cultural Resources Recovery Support Function. ...Health and Social Services Recovery Support Function. ...Community Assistance Recovery Support Function.



Common Questions regarding a CEMP

 Do we still need a EOP if we have a CEMP?
 No, the CEMP replaces the EOP. The CEMP expanded upon the EOP.

 Does a CEMP have to be approved/resolution by city council?
 The main CEMP does go through council approval, the attached annexes however are separate and 

do not require  Formal Council approval. 

  Explain what the annexes are? 
  The annexes for the MSD CEMP are often operational plans that can focus on hazard of jurisdictional 

specifics. They can hold more specific local information such as evacuation routes or triggers to 
prompt specified actions in response and recovery.

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
With the adoption and approval of the CEMP having an EOP or emergency operation plan is no longer needed. The CEMP can be looked at as a SOG vs a SOP. The Main CEMP provides overall guidance of how we will respond during an event or emergency where the EOP was a long document that covered the command hazards noted in the Salt Lake County THIRA. The main CEMP does require council adoption/approval- the attached hazard specific annexes however do not. This is to aid to keep the hazard specific annexes current as they can be updated at anytime. Some examples would be if people names are listed instead of position if they were to leave the annexes can then be easily updated. Another would be phone numbers or emails. The MSD CEMP is setup to allow each city to place a copy of their plans. The  recommended route is that each city adopts the MSD CEMP, and the resolution is then placed in the section. If a city wants to write/develop their own CEMP, they are welcome to and once that is formally adopted a copy would be placed in that section. Another annex could be each jurisdiction organizational chart. These are usually based on the structure of each jurisdiction and will vary based on capabilities of the cities. 



Benefits of the Comprehensive Emergency 
Management Plan (CEMP)

 Proactive Approach:
 Emphasizes all five phases of emergency management.

 Comprehensive Scope:
 Covers a wide range of potential hazards and scenarios.

 Integration and coordination:
 Enhances coordination among various agencies and stakeholders.

 Community Resilience:
 Builds long-term resilience and reduces vulnerability



Call to Action 

 Summary/Key Points:

 Better aligns us with our neighboring cities and with Salt Lake 
County’s new CEMP.

 In summary, the limitations of our current EOP highlight the need for a     
more comprehensive approach to emergency management.

 The CEMP offers significant benefits, including a proactive 
approach, comprehensive scope, better integration and 
coordination, and enhanced community resilience.



MAGNA, UTAH  
RESOLUTION NO. R2025-03

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAGNA CITY COUNCIL 
ADOPTING THE GREATER SALT LAKE MUNICIPAL 

SERVICES COMPREHENSIVE EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

WHEREAS, a Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP) can reduce the vulnerability of 
citizens community of Magna City, which is within the jurisdiction of the Greater Salt Lake Municipal 
Services District, to loss of life, injury, damage and destruction of property during natural, technological, 
or human-caused emergencies and disasters or during hostile military or paramilitary actions; and 

WHEREAS, a  CEMP will help Magna City, which is within the jurisdiction of the Greater Salt 
Lake Municipal Service District, prepare for prompt and efficient response and recovery to protect 
lives and property affected by emergencies and disasters; 

WHEREAS, a CEMP will help Magna City, which is within the jurisdiction of the Greater Salt 
Lake Municipal Services District, respond to emergencies using all systems, plans and resources 
necessary to preserve the health, safety and welfare of persons affected by an emergency; and 

WHEREAS, a CEMP helps Magna City, which is within the jurisdiction of the Greater Salt Lake 
Municipal Services District, with recovering from emergencies and disasters by providing for the rapid 
and orderly restoration and rehabilitation of persons and property affected by emergencies; and 

WHEREAS, a CEMP provides an emergency management system encompassing all aspects of pre-
emergency preparedness and post-emergency response, recovery and mitigation; and 

WHEREAS, Magna City is within the jurisdiction of the Greater Salt Lake Municipal Services District 
and desires to adopt a CEMP as the Magna City CEMP in the interest of the public health, safety and 
welfare. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF MAGNA CITY, UTAH: 

Section 1. Adoption of an Emergency Operations Plan. The Comprehensive Emergency Management 
Plan (“Plan”) of the Greater Salt Lake Municipal Services District is hereby adopted as the emergency 
operations plan for Magna City, including its designation of an alert plan, and alert system. The Plan is 
attached as Exhibit 1.  

Section 2.   Adoption of the National Incident Management System (NIMS). Magna City 
hereby adopts the National Incident Management System (NIMS) as a framework to integrate and 
coordinate the emergency response and recovery actions of all levels of government.  

Section 3.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately.  

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of February 2025.

[Signatures on following page]



ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Diana Baun, City Recorder 

APPROVED: 

______________________________ 
Paul Ashton, Attorney 

_____ 
Voting 
Mayor Barney  
Council Member Hull _____ 

_____ 
_____ 

Council Member Pierce 
Council Member Prokopis 
Council Member Sudbury _____ 

_______________________________
Eric Barney, Mayor



1 | P a g e   

2024 Salt Lake County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Greater Salt Lake 
Municipal Services District 

Comprehensive 
Emergency 

Management Plan 



2 | P a g e   

Base Plan | September 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
     THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



3 | P a g e   

i. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Greater Salt Lake Municipal Services District Comprehensive Emergency Management 
Plan (MSD CEMP) establishes the framework through which Greater Salt Lake Municipal 
Services District (MSD) and the communities it serves (Towns of Brighton and Copperton, 
Emigration Canyon, Magna City, White City, and the City of Kearns) respond to, recover from, 
prepare for, and mitigate against all hazards that threaten it. Local government has the 
primary responsibility of emergency management activities. When the emergency exceeds 
the local government’s capabilities to respond, the local government will then request 
assistance from the MSD. When the MSD exceeds its capabilities, it will then request 
assistance from Salt Lake County, and then the State of Utah. The Federal Government will 
aid the State when appropriate. This plan is based upon the concept that the 
emergency functions for municipal departments, functions or groups will generally 
parallel their normal day-to-day functions. To the extent possible, the same personnel 
and material resources will be employed in both cases. 

Along with the Hazard Analysis, this plan is intended to be used as a guiding document 
when executing response or recovery operations during a disaster or emergency and to 
guide preparedness and mitigation operations. 

Navigating the Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan 

The following sections in the CEMP provide direction on emergency or disaster activation, 
response, recovery, preparedness, and mitigation procedures. 

Activation occurs after identifying an occurring or imminent emergency or disaster 
incident. Operations in this section include: 

● Assessing the scope and potential impacts of the emergency 
● Convening the Policy Group and senior leadership to determine response 

priorities and next steps 
● Activating the CEMP to facilitate response and recovery operations 
● Determining if the MSD ECC will be activated to support response and 

recovery operations 
● Staffing the MSD Emergency Coordination Center [MSD ECC] to facilitate and 

support response and recovery operations 

Response includes immediate operations following the identification of an occurring or 
imminent emergency or disaster to save lives and prevent further property damage. 
Operations in this section include: 

● Forming a common operating picture to ensure situational awareness among 
responding entities 

● Developing and documenting incident priorities through the Incident Action Plan (IAP) 



4 | P a g e   

● Issuing and/or coordinating with the County for timely and accurate public warning and 
guidance to the community 

● Implementing protective actions, such as evacuations and sheltering, to save lives and 
property 

● Coordinating with partners such as other municipalities, the County, and the State to 
support emergency or disaster response 

● Documenting response operations to support audits, documentation policies, and 
transition to recovery operations 

Recovery operations support returning the community to pre-emergency or disaster 
conditions. Operations in this section include: 

● Transitioning from response to recovery operations 
● Assessing recovery needs of the community to execute targeted recovery operations 
● Initiating long-term recovery efforts to support the community returning to normal 

Preparedness operations prepare for and mitigate the impacts of all hazards. Operations in 
this section include: 

● Developing planning documentation to formalize capabilities and procedures that 
prepare for and mitigate the impacts of emergencies and disasters 

● Conducting mitigation planning to build resilience and identify mitigation actions to 
lessen the impacts of specific hazards 

● Training and exercising on plans and procedures to support execution of response and 
recovery operations 

● Involving the public in emergency management through outreach to increase 
community preparedness 



5 | P a g e   

ii. PROMULGATION 
Transmitted herewith is the Greater Salt Lake County Municipal Services District Comprehensive 
Emergency Management Plan (MSD CEMP). The MSD CEMP was developed through the 
collaborative efforts of t h e  MSD, stakeholders from the Town of Brighton, Copperton, 
Emigration Canyon, Magna City, White City, The City of Kearns, Salt Lake County 
Emergency Management, and the Utah Division of Emergency Management (DEM). 

The MSD appreciates the cooperation and support from all stakeholders that contributed 
to the development of the MSD CEMP. The Towns and Cities, Municipal Service District, 
County and State organizations listed in this plan will review the MSD CEMP for accuracy on a 
periodic basis. 

The MSD CEMP and its supporting documents supersede any previous Emergency Management 
plan and have been approved for implementation by: 

 
 
 

 

Name  Position  Date 



6 | P a g e   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



7 | P a g e   

iii.  RECORD OF DISTRIBUTION 
                                       Table 1: Record of Distribution 
 

Name Title Agency MM/DD/YYYY Number off 
Copies 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     



8 | P a g e   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 | P a g e   

iii.  RECORD OF REVISION 

                                        Table 2: Record of Revision 
 

Section Title Revision Summar Date Revised By (Name) 

  MM/DD/YYYY  

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    



10 | P a g e   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
     THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 | P a g e   

Table of Contents 

 i EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ......................................................................................................3 

 ii PROMULGATION ............................................................................................................. 5 

iii RECORD OF DISTRIBUTION ........................................................................................... 7 

iv RECORD OF REVISION .................................................................................................... 9 

1. BASE PLAN INTRODUCTION ..................................................................................... …...13 

1.1 Scope…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….14 

1.2 Purpose…………………………………………………………………………………………………………14   

1.3 Hazard Overview ........................................................................................ 14 

2.0 ASSUMPTIONS ............................................................................................................. 15 

2.1 Activation................................................................................................................... 17 

2.2 Activation Phase ............................................................................................................ 17 

2.2.1 Assess the Emergency ............................................................................................ 18 

2.3 Determine Whether CEMP Activation is Required .................................. 18 

2.3.1 Convene Policy Group and Senior Leadership....................................................... 19 

2.3.2 Determine Which Emergency Facilities to Use  ................................................... 19 

2.3.3 Staff the Emergency Coordination enter (ECC) .................................................... 19 

3.0 CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS…………………………………………………………………………21 

3.1 Normal Operations ..................................................................................... 21 

3.2 Declaring a Local State of Emergency ...................................................................... 21 

3.3 Coordinate with Towe, City Municipality Partners ........................................ 23 

3.4 Preparedness .............................................................................................. 25 

3.5 Develop Plans for Future Emergencies.......................................................... 25 

 3.5.1 Update Plans Regularly ...................................................................... 26 

3.6 MSD Emergency Coordination Center Activation .......................................... 26 

 3.6.1 Requesting Mutual Aid ....................................................................... 27 

 3.6.2 Salt Lake County Emergency Coordination Center Activation................ 27 

 3.6.3 Emergency Support Functions ............................................................................... 28 

 3.6.4 Decision Making in the Salt Lake County ECC ......................................................... 28 

 3.6.5 Salt Lake County ECC Activation Plan ..................................................................... 28 



12 | P a g e   

 3.6.6 After Action and Corrective Action Plans................................................................ 30 

4.0 ORGANIZATION AND RESPONSIBILITY……………………………………………………31 

4.1 Greater Salt Lake Municipal Service District...................................................................... 32 

4.2 County Departments and Agencies .................................................................................. 32 

4.3 State Agencies ................................................................................................................ 33 

 4.4 Federal Agencies ............................................................................................................. 34 

 4.5 Non-governmental Organizations .................................................................................... 34 

 4.6 Functional Responsibilities .............................................................................................. 36 

5.0 DIRECTION, CONTROL AND COORDINATION ........................................ 38 

5.1 Perform Damage Assessment .......................................................................................... 39 

5.2 Rapid Damage Assessment .............................................................................................. 39 

5.3 Preliminary Damage Assessment ..................................................................................... 39 

5.4 Response Procedures ...................................................................................................... 40 

5.5 Response & Recovery ...................................................................................................... 41 

5.6 Continuity of Operations ................................................................................................. 41 

6.0 COMMUNICATIONS .......................................................................... 41 

7.0 ADMINISTRATION, FINANCE, AND LOGISTICS....................................... 42 

 7.1 Administration Information ............................................................................................. 42 

7.2 Records, Preservation and Restoration............................................................................. 42 

7.3 Reports and Records........................................................................................................ 42 

7.4 Financial Management .................................................................................................... 43 

7.5 Accounting ...................................................................................................................... 43 

7.6 Fiscal Agreements ........................................................................................................... 43 

7.7 Logistics .......................................................................................................................... 44 

8.0 PLAN MAINTENANCE AND DISTRIBUTION .......................................... 45 

8.1 Emergency Operations Plan Maintenance ........................................................................ 46 

9.0 AUTHORITY AND REFERENCES .......................................................... 47 

9.1 Authorities ...................................................................................................................... 47 

 9.2 Supporting Documents/Plans ................................................................................... 47 

10.0 GLOSSARY & LIST OF EMERGENCY SUPPORT FUNCTIONS ................... 49 

11.0 ACRONYMS................................................................................... 55 

12.0 ANNEXES ...................................................................................... 57 



13 | P a g e   

 

1.0 BASE PLAN INTRODUCTION 
The Salt Lake Greater Municipal Service District Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan 
(MSD CEMP) establishes the framework through which the MSD, Towns of Brighton and 
Copperton, Magna City, White City, the City of Kearns and Emigration Canyon will respond to, 
recover from, prepare for, and mitigate against all hazards that are threats to them. It 
describes the comprehensive integration and coordination of all levels of municipal, County, 
State, and federal government, volunteer organizations, non-profit agencies, and the private 
sector. 

1.1 Purpose 
The base plan provides a comprehensive overview of scalable command and control structures 
and operational procedures across all levels of government to respond to, recover from, 
prepare for, and mitigate against all hazards. The MSD CEMP for the Town of Brighton and 
Copperton, Emigration Canyon, Magna City, White City, and the City of Kearns, establishes a 
framework for an effective system of comprehensive emergency operations and management 
for the purpose of: 

• Reducing the loss of life, injury, property damage and loss from natural or man-made 
emergencies. 

• Preparing for prompt and efficient response activities to protect lives and property 
impacted by emergencies. 

• Responding to emergencies with the effective use of all relevant plans and appropriate 
resources. 

• Providing for the rapid and orderly implementation of recovery operations. 
• Assisting in awareness, education, prevention, and mitigation of emergencies. 

 

1.2 Scope 

The MSD CEMP includes several incident-specific annexes that describe the concept of 
operations to address specific hazard situations that contain technical information, details, and 
methods for use in emergency operations for agencies located within the communities served 
by the MSD. 

The MSD CEMP addresses the various levels of emergencies or disasters likely to occur and, in 
accordance with the magnitude of an event, the corresponding short- and long-term response 
actions that state organizations will take in coordination with the MSD ECC, SLCo Emergency 
Management Division, Utah DEM, and the surrounding local jurisdictions. 



14 | P a g e   

1.3 Hazard Overview 
The Salt Lake County Hazard Mitigation Plan identifies the hazards that pose a risk to the 
communities served by the MSD and details their potential impacts. Each community's specific 
hazard mitigation plan is included in the jurisdiction-specific sections of the Salt Lake County 
Hazard Mitigation Plan. Many communities have chosen to adopt the MSD-wide plan. These 
hazards are identified in the Salt Lake County THIRA (Threat and Hazard Identification and Risk 
Assessment). 

Figure 1 provides an overview of those hazards. 

Figure 1: County Hazard Overview 
 

 

Figure 2: Types of Vulnerability 

 



15 | P a g e   

2.0 ASSUMPTIONS 
 The emergency command and control structure in the communities served by the 

MSD are based on a bottom-up approach to response and recovery resource 
allocation. Each level of government must exhaust its resources prior to elevation to 
the next level. Homeland security statutes and regulations may govern certain 
response activities. The recovery of losses and reimbursements of costs from federal 
resources will require preparation and compliance with specific and defined 
processes. 

 Many homes, businesses, and industries may be damaged or destroyed. The 
structural integrity of many public buildings, bridges, roadways, and facilities may be 
compromised. Water and utility infrastructure can be severely affected, and 
emergency response efforts will be hampered due to transportation problems, lack 
of electrical power, debris, and damaged, destroyed or inaccessible structures. 

 The responsibilities and functions outlined in this MSD CEMP will be fulfilled only if 
the situation, information exchange, extent of actual agency capabilities and 
resources are available at the time of the emergency or disaster. 

 There will likely be direct physical and economic damage to critical infrastructure. 
This damage will diminish emergency response capabilities due to inaccessible 
locales, will cause inconvenience or overwhelming distress due to temporary or 
protracted service interruptions and will result in long-term economic losses due to 
the economic and physical limitations of recovery operations. 

 The Mayor or Emergency Manager for the town or city, or their designated 
representative(s) from the communities served by the MSD, at the time of the 
emergency, will coordinate activities in their jurisdiction with the MSD ECC. The MSD 
ECC will then maintain communication with the ESF 5 – Emergency Management 
desk with the Salt Lake Co ECC. 

 A few of the significant factors that will affect casualties and damage include time of 
occurrence, severity of impact, weather conditions, population density, building 
construction, and secondary events (for example, fires, explosions, structural 
collapse, contamination issues, loss of critical infrastructure, floods, etc.). 

 Disaster relief from departments and agencies outside the communities served by 
the MSD may take five days or more to arrive. 

 The communities served by the MSD will respond according to their Emergency 
Response Guidelines. 

 The MSD CEMP describes basic strategies that will outline the mobilization of 
resources and emergency operation activities that support local emergency 
management efforts. The MSD CEMP addresses the following five mission areas of 
the National Preparedness Goal for Homeland Security: 



16 | P a g e  
 

The following planning assumptions of the five mission areas of the National Preparedness Goal 
for Homeland Security are in Table 1 were considered in the development and execution of the 
base plan. 

 
Table 1: Base Plan Assumptions 

 

  

 
 

 
Coordination 
Structures 

● Municipal, County, State, and federal response organizations adopt NIMS as the 
integrated system to respond to and recover from incidents. 

● Emergency management coordination and resource allocation starts at the 
municipal level and extends to County, State, and federal resources as availability 
and capabilities are exhausted. 

● The MSD Emergency Coordination Center (ECC) is staffed with representatives from 
the MSD under the [ESF/ISM] structure during response and the Recovery Support 
Function (RSF) structure during recovery. 

 
Activation 

● Some activation notifications and communications depend on availability of 
communications and energy infrastructure. 

● Damaged infrastructure impacts the speed at which municipal, special service 
district, County, State, and federal agencies can activate and deploy resources. 

 
 
 
 

 
Response 

● The MSD ECC makes every reasonable effort to respond in the event of an 
emergency or disaster. 

● Time of occurrence, severity of impact, weather conditions, population density, 
building construction, and cascading events are significant factors that affect 
casualties and damage. 

● Emergency response capabilities are diminished due to damaged infrastructure and 
equipment or inaccessible locales. 

● Damages to infrastructure are likely to manifest in direct physical and economic 
damages to facilities and systems. 

● Disaster relief from agencies outside the Cities or Towns serviced by the MSD may 
take 120 hours or more to arrive. 

 
Recovery 

● Recovery of losses or reimbursements of costs from federal assistance requires 
preparation and compliance with federal statutes and regulations. 

● The economic and physical limitations of recovery operations may result in 
temporary or protracted interruptions to services. 

 
 
 

 
Preparedness 
and Mitigation 

● Effective preparedness requires ongoing public community awareness and 
education programs so that citizens are prepared and understand their 
responsibilities should a major disaster or emergency occur. 

● Residents living within Cities and Towns serviced by the MSD are expected to 
maintain essential supplies to be self-sufficient for a minimum of 120 hours and 
up to two weeks following the initial impacts of an emergency or disaster. 
Effective mitigation may prevent certain hazards or incidents from occurring. For 
hazards or incidents that cannot be prevented, effective mitigation may reduce 
their impacts. 



17 | P a g e  
 

2.1 Activation 
 2.1.1 Involve the Community in Emergency Management 

Effective community preparedness requires ongoing community awareness and education 
programs so citizens are prepared and understand their responsibilities should a major disaster 
or emergency occur. 

2.1.2 Improve Public Safety through Education and Outreach 
The Emergency Managers of the city and towns serviced by the MSD, working with the 
Communications Manager/PIO of the MSD will coordinate with other municipal communications 
officers, and be responsible for developing and disseminating preparedness public messaging 
campaigns. Examples of these campaigns include: 

● Signing up for public alert applications 
● Developing a personal preparedness plan 
● Informing the community on safety information about flood zones and evacuation 

routes 

2.2 Activation Phase 
 

 

 
Assess the 
Emergency 

Convene Policy 
Group and Senior 
Leadership 

Determine if 
CEMPT Activation 
is Required 

Determine Which 
Emergency 
Facilities to Use 

 
Staff the 
ECC/EOC 

Key Activities 
● The MSD Duty Officer is contacted by the Chief Elected Official or their designated 

representative (Emergency Manager) from the affected municipality and assess the 
potential or actual emergency and determine whether the MSD Policy Group needs to 
be contacted. If the incident warrants the contact of the MSD Policy Group, the Duty 
Officer will contact them. (See MSD ECC Activation Plan in Annex H of this plan). 

● The MSD Duty Officer and MSD Policy Group of the municipality affected will determine 
if the MSD ECC should be used to support response. 

● The MSD Manager determines the extent of the MSD ECC activation, and which 
organizational structures and staff need to be mobilized to support activated facilities. 

● EM notifies personnel they have been activated to support response. 
 

 
 
 



18 | P a g e  
 

 
2.2.1 Assess the Emergency 
Municipal first responders are often the first agency to identify an imminent or potential emergency or 
disaster. Responding agencies on-scene utilize coordination structures defined in NIMS to respond to 
and assess the scope or potential impacts of the incident. Considerations when assessing the scope or 
potential impacts include: 

● Potential for loss of life or injury 
● Potential damage to property, roads, electricity, water, and other infrastructure 
● Amount of time before incident impact 
● Potential economic disruption 

When the Chief Elected Official or Emergency Manager (EM) are advised of the incident by the first 
responders or the community, they shall contact the MSD Duty Officer at the 24-hour contact number. 
(See MSD ECC Activation Response Plan in Annex B). The Chief Elected Official or EM shall conference 
with the MSD Duty Officer to determine to declare an emergency. The Duty Officer will advise the Chief 
Elected Official or EM that they will advise the MSD Leadership (General Manager and/or Associate 
Manager) of the incident and the possible emergency declaration. The MSD Leadership will determine 
if the MSD Policy Group needs to convene. If the Policy Group does not need to convene, the MSD 
Leadership will contact the Chief Elected Official or EM and advise them of their action. If the MSD 
Leadership chooses to convene the MSD Policy Group, see MSD ECC Activation and Response Plan 
in Annex H. 

2.3 Determine Whether Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan
 Activation is Required 

Upon identification or warning of an incident, the following members of the MSD Policy Group will work 
collectively to activate the CEMP. 

● Emergency Manager or designee 

● MSD [Administrator/General Manager] or designee 

● Local City/town Mayor 

The MSD Policy Group will consider the initial assessment from first responders to determine if the 
MSD CEMP and MSD ECC should be activated. Once the CEMP has been activated, relevant municipal 
and county agencies and partners are notified to implement the subsequent sections of this plan. 

Warn the Community About Imminent Threats 

If an emergency or disaster poses an immediate risk to the community, first responder agencies, in 
coordination with local Public Information Officers (PIO’s) and EM’s provide alert and warnings to the 
community and implement protective actions as rapidly as possible. If needed, local jurisdictions 
should coordinate with MSD and SLCo EM PIO for iPAWS messaging. 

 



19 | P a g e  
 

Effective and timely life and property saving operations often depend on prompt identification and 
activation of resources during a disaster or emergency. This section provides an overview of 
operations that occur after identifying an occurring or imminent emergency disaster 

2.3.1 Convene Policy Group and Senior Leadership 
Responding agencies use established communications channels to notify senior decision makers, such 
as the local Emergency Manager/Mayor or UFA liaison Officer, the MSD On call Officer, of imminent or 
occurring emergencies or disasters. These channels include: 

● Emergency dispatch 
● Field observation 
● ECC Planning and Intelligence Section 
● Alerts from neighboring jurisdictions 
 

2.3.2 Determine Which Emergency Facilities to Use  

Decide Which Facilities are Necessary to Support Response 

Following the activation of the CEMP, the MSD Emergency Manager coordinates with the local cities 
and/or towns, Salt Lake County Emergency Management, first responding agencies, and other 
City/County leadership. Together, they determine which emergency management facilities to activate. 

2.3.3 Staff the Emergency Coordination enter (ECC) 
When an event requires ECC activation, the MSD General Manager or designee will determine which 
ECC sections, branches, positions, and [ESF/ISM] are activated or deactivated depending on the 
emergency or disaster's scope and size. 

The ECC uses an ICS/Hybrid structure to respond to incidents and is organized by: 

 
● Sections that group the operations of the four core functions of the ECC (See table) 

 
● Branches that organize section-specific operations and may have a combination of [ESF/ISM] and ECC 

positions. 
 

● [ESF/ISM] that are groupings of similar organizations and agencies to support section and branch-
specific operations. 
 

● ECC positions that provide specific support for ECC sections and overall ECC operations, such as safety, 
communications support, and documentation. 

 
 
 

 



20 | P a g e  
 

Figure 4 provides an overview of the ECC structure, including sections, branches, and positions.  

 

 

The 
2019 Utah Hazard Mitigation Plan and the 2019 Salt Lake County Hazard Mitigation Plan served as the guidelines for 
mitigation operations in the State of Utah in general, SLCo, and the communities served by the MSD, specifically. 
These plans help to promote sound public policy designed to protect citizens, critical facilities, infrastructure, 
private property, and the environment. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



21 | P a g e  
 

3.CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS 
The communities served by the MSD use a bottom-up 
approach in all phases of emergency management, with 
emergency activities being resolved at the lowest 
possible level of response. The resources of local 
response agencies, county, state, and federal agencies 
are to be used in this sequential order to ensure a rapid 
and efficient response. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

3.1 Normal Operations 
In the absence of a declared disaster or state of emergency, the emergency response forces 
(EMS, fire, law enforcement, and public works) will respond to emergencies within the 
communities served by the MSD. Mutual aid and shared response jurisdictions are addressed 
through local agreements and do not require a local declaration of emergency to enable them. 
The Chief Elected Executive(s) or their designee(s) from the City or Town affected by the 
emergency may request operational assistance from the MSD ECC, if the event exceeds the 
City or Town capabilities. 

 
  

3.2 Declaring a Local State of Emergency 
The very nature of disasters — their unique circumstances, the unexpected timing, and varied 
impacts — precludes a complete listing of factors considered when evaluating disaster 
declaration requests. All disasters start and end at the local level; however, the primary factors 
considered include the following: 

 Amount and type of damage (number of homes destroyed or homes with 
major damage) 

 Impact on the infrastructure of affected areas or critical facilities 

 Imminent threats to public health and safety 

 Impact on essential government services and functions 

 Dispersion or concentration of damage 

 Level of insurance coverage in place for homeowners and public facilities 

 Assistance available from other sources (federal, state, local, voluntary 
organizations) 



22 | P a g e  
 

 State and local resource commitments from previous, undeclared events 

 Frequency of disaster events over a recent time period 

 When conditions warrant, the Chief Elected Executive of the city or town, or 

their designee(s), will request a Declaration of Emergency (Each City or 

Town Mayor has the authority to declare an emergency within their 

Jurisdiction and are defined as a “municipality” by U.C.A. § 10-1-104(5)(c). 

The “chief executive officer” of a city or a town is defined as the “mayor” by 

U.C.A. § 53-2a-203(1)(a)(i) because they are a “form of municipal 

government.” Finally, each mayor has the powers outlined in U.C.A. § 

53-2a-205 when a “state of emergency or local emergency has been 

    declared.”)  

 A local emergency declaration shall not be continued or renewed for a  

period in excess of 30 days except by or with the consent of the affected 

City or Town Council. Utah Code § 53-2a-208 (1) (b) 

 Damage assessment updates from affected areas should follow at regular 

intervals from the Chief Elected Executive or their designee, from the Cities 

or Towns, with assistance from the MSD. Crisis Track is the current platform 

for completing damage assessments.  

The Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (referred to as the 
Stafford Act - 42 U.S.C. 5721 et seq.) authorizes the President to issue major disaster or 
emergency declarations before or after catastrophes occur. Emergency declarations trigger aid 
that protects property, public health and safety, and lessens or averts the threat of an incident 
becoming a catastrophic event. 

Effective and timely life and property saving operations often depend on prompt identification 
and activation of resources during a disaster or emergency. This section provides an overview of 
operations that occur after identifying an occurring or imminent emergency or disaster incident



23 | P a g e  
 

 
3.3 Coordinate with City and Town Municipality Partners 
To effectively implement activation, response, recovery, and preparedness actions, 
the MSD and its ECC coordinates with County, State, federal, and private sector 
partners. This section provides an overview of how these entities coordinate. 

As an incident evolves, expands, or affects certain sectors, various agencies may 
become involved to support response and recovery operations. Figure 7 provides a 
general overview of how different agencies and entities are involved as an incident 
becomes more complex. 

Incident Complexity 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



24 | P a g e  
 

 

 
The table below describes the major responsibilities related to coordination during 
emergency and disaster response and recovery operations. 

Coordination Roles and Responsibilities 
 

  
 
 

 
Municipalities 

● Respond to incident based on available resources and capabilities 
● Notify municipal emergency management and other supporting agencies of 

operations, initial assessment, and need for further support (if required) 
● Activate relevant municipal EOC to provide timely, accurate, and regular 

assessments and coordination support 
● Declare a local emergency if warranted 
● Activate MSD ECC 

 

 
 
 

 
County 

● Activate ECC to support response and recovery coordination. 
● Notify DEM of incident and request support as needed. 
● Create County disaster declaration as needed. 
● Coordinate with Utah DEM to request federal assistance as needed. 
● Coordinate requests from municipalities and County departments, 

organizations, and agencies for resources to support response and recovery. 
● Regularly assess and document incident impacts and status. 
● Develop timely and accurate messaging to the community regarding incident 

status and protective actions. 

 
 

 
State of Utah 

● Provide DEM liaison to support communication and coordinate between the 
Salt Lake County ECC and DEM. 

● Coordinate support from State of Utah agencies, other counties, and inter- 
State mutual aid through EMAC. 

● Support [Town/City/Municipality/County] and State disaster declaration as 
needed. 

● Coordinate federal assistance. 

 
Federal Government 

● Provide response support and resources if State of Utah capabilities are 
insufficient to respond and recover from the incident. 

● Provide federal assistance to help the [Municipality] recover from emergency 
or disaster impacts. 

 

 
Private Sector 

● Incorporate response and recovery resources and support to municipal and 
County governments through requests, agreements, and memorandums of 
understanding (MOU). 

● Provide situational assessment and ensure situational awareness of disaster 
or emergency, if applicable. 
 
 

 



25 | P a g e  
 

3.4 Preparedness 
This section provides an overview of preparedness actions executed by the 
communities serviced by the MSD and the MSD partnering agencies to prepare for 
the impacts of all hazards. Preparedness actions occur prior to and after emergencies 
and disasters and include planning, training, and exercises. 

Preparedness Phase Overview 

 

 
 

Key Activities 

● All agencies develop internal plans to support emergency or disaster preparedness. 
● Local communities and MSD EMs coordinates hazard mitigation planning and 

identification of mitigation projects to lessen the impacts of emergencies and 
disasters. 

● Local communities and MSD EMs plans for, executes training, and exercises for 
different partner entities within the Municipality. 

● The local communities EM, working with the MSD Leadership and MSD PIO implement 
outreach strategies to inform, educate, and engage the community on emergency 
preparedness. 

 

3.5 Develop Plans for Future Emergencies 

Maintain Plans that Support Response and Recovery 
The cities and towns serviced by the MSD will maintain operational plans and 
documents described in the table below to better facilitate disaster and emergency 
response. 

 

 

 



26 | P a g e  
 

Planning Documentation Overview 
 

  

Comprehensive 
Emergency 
Management Plan 

Establishes the framework for the Cities and towns serviced by the MSD to 
respond to, recover from, prepare for, and mitigate against all hazards that 
pose a threat to them 

 

3.5.1 Update Plans Regularly 
Emergency Managers of the cities and towns serviced by the MSD have the overall 
responsibility for ensuring their plans, annexes, operation guides, and associated 
checklists are current. The city or town Emergency Manager or designee assigns 
personnel to be accountable for the upkeep of specific planning documentation. 

 

3.6 MSD Emergency Coordination Center Activation 
This MSD CEMP and the MSD ECC may be activated when the Chief Elected Executive, 
or their designee(s) from a city or town, have declared a local emergency, or when 
an emergency is considered imminent or probable, and the implementation of this MSD 
CEMP and the MSD ECC is considered a prudent, proactive response. (See MSD ECC 
Activation and Response Plan). 

An event may start out small, escalate quickly, or may occur at any time of day 
or night. The following are steps leading to a disaster declaration: 

 As soon as an incident occurs, the Chief Elected Executive(s), or 
their designee(s) of the Cities or Towns affected will monitor 
the situation and advise the MSD Duty Officer (DO). 

 The Cities or Towns will initially respond to the emergency 
using their Emergency Response Guidelines. 

 The MSD DO will then contact the MSD General Manager (GM) and 
Associate General Manager (AGM) to advise them of the incident. 
(See MSD ECC Activation and Response Procedures). 

 The communities served by the MSD will use their own or 
contracted resources first in dealing with an emergency. 

 In an emergency or disaster situation, when those resources are 
overwhelmed or threatened to be overwhelmed, the Chief Elected 
Executive(s) or their designee of the Cities or Towns affected, will 
notify the MSD ECC Duty Officer, and advise them of the incident. 
(See MSD ECC Activation and Response Plan). 

 The GM, AGM, or the Director of Planning or designee of the MSD, working 



27 | P a g e  
 

with the Chief Elected Executive or their designee of the affected City or 
Town, will determine whether or not to activate the MSD ECC. (See MSD 
ECC Activation and Response Procedures). 

 Once activated, the MSD ECC will serve as the representative for the City or 
Town to the Salt Lake County ECC. (See MSD ECC Activation and Response 
Procedures). 

 If the incident is beyond the MSC ECC capabilities, the MSD ECC Commend 
will, using the most functional and available method of communication, 
notify the SLCo Emergency Manager, or the 24-hour SLCo Emergency Watch 
Desk (Duty Officer), of the incident and request assistance. (See MSD ECC 
Activation and Response Procedures). When required, the communities 
served by the MSD, will declare a local state of emergency and assist 
emergency response coordination and operations from the MSD 
ECC. 

 

3.6.1 Requesting Mutual Aid 
To expedite the resource sharing process, the MSD has entered into mutual aid 
agreements with neighboring jurisdictions and assisting agencies to access 
additional resources should they be available. Such mutual aid agreements are 
pre-established (preferred) or created at the onset of response operations. Pre-
establishing mutual aid agreements prior to response operations is preferred as 
the agreements can be rapidly utilized during response. The MSD has already 
established contracts and mutual aid agreements.  

Mutual aid agreements often include: 

● Identification of the resources accessed 
● Reasonable assurance that resources are available when needed 
● Terms for compensation 

 
3.6.2   Salt Lake  County Emergency Coordination Center Activation 
The SLCo ECC will serve as the command center for all disaster response 
operations in Salt Lake County. The ECC is located at 3380 South 900 West, 
Salt Lake City, Utah. If a disaster or emergency prevents the use of this 
primary facility, SLCo will determine the alternate ECC. 
 

 
 

 
 



28 | P a g e  
 

ECC Activation Levels of Operation 
 

1. The Salt Lake County ECC activation is divided into three levels 
of readiness, to establish emergency operations. 

2. SLCo Emergency Management staff are always on-call to 
monitor and follow up on situations, threats, or events within 
the communities served by the MSD. 

The severity of the event will directly affect the level of activation by 
the SLCo ECC. The SLCo Emergency Manager, will help decide to 
increase or decrease levels of activation. When the SLCo ECC is 
activated, a centralized response and recovery will be established, 
with operational plans and activities focused on efficiency, quality, 
and quantity of resources. 

The three levels of activation coordinate with the SLCo, Utah DEM, 
and federal plan activation levels: 

 Level I: Full-scale activation (Red) 

 Level II: Limited activation (Yellow) 

 Level III: Monitoring activation (Green) 

3. Level I – Full-Scale Activation 

Level I is the complete mobilization and operation of the SLCo ECC 
with full staffing, as available. The SLCo ECC may operate on a 
24-hour schedule due to the severity of the event. The MSD ECC 
will coordinate with the SLCO ECC. 

4. Level II - Limited Activation 

Level II is limited county activation, where only those Emergency 
Services Functions (ESFs) which are necessary to support the 
response to the emergency are activated. The SLCo Emergency 
Manager will notify coordinators of ESFs that they are activated and 
to report to the ECC. All other ESFs will be alerted and put on-
standby. The SLCo Emergency Manager may request a liaison from 
the MSD to represent the Cities and Towns affected by the 
emergency. These emergencies require limited staff to direct and 
support the needed ECC operations. 

 

 



29 | P a g e  
 

5. Level III – Monitoring Activation 

Level III is a preparatory step taken upon the receipt of a warning for 
a potential disaster or emergency condition. The SLCo Emergency 
Manager will apprise the MSD of the event. The SLCo Emergency 
Manager will evaluate the situation and, if conditions warrant, alert 
and advise the appropriate individuals and agencies of the situation 
and instruct them to take appropriate action as part of their 
everyday responsibilities. The SLCo ECC may be activated with only 
administrative staff. They will assess the situation and may escalate 
the activation is needed. This level typically involves observation, 
verification of appropriate action, and follow-up. Notifications may 
be made that will potentially affect departments and other agencies 
or jurisdictions. The ECC may be set up and prepared for operations. 
Communications equipment will be tested and made operational. 
The day-to-day operations are typically not altered, and the 
management structure stays the same. 

 

3.6.3 Emergency Support Functions 
The SLCo ECC uses the ICS structure, which provides the ECC staff with a 
standardized operational structure and common terminology. The ECC is 
organized into 15 ESFs which are composed of local departments, agencies, and 
voluntary organizations that are grouped together to provide needed 
assistance. 

 

3.6.4 Decision Making in the Salt Lake County ECC 
Activation of the ECC is to develop and maintain awareness of the entire 
situation for decision makers and to coordinate support for emergency 
responders. A common operating picture is critical because it provides the 
basis for making decisions and facilitates the release of emergency public 
information. Situational awareness is also vital to the effective coordination of 
support for responders in the field. 

 
3.6.5 Salt Lake County ECC Action Planning 
ECC Incident Action Plans (IAP) provide designated ECC personnel with 
knowledge of the objectives to be achieved and the steps required for their 
achievement. ECC IAPs also provide a basis for measuring the achievement of 
objectives and overall system performance. 

 



30 | P a g e  
 

Action planning is an important management tool that involves the following: 

 Identification of emergency response priorities and objectives 
based on situational awareness 

 Documentation of established priorities and objectives and the 
associated tasks and personnel assignments 

The Planning Section is responsible for developing the ECC incident action plan 
and facilitating action-planning meetings. ECC action plans are developed for a 
specified operational period, which may range from a few hours to 24 hours. 
The operational period is determined by establishing an initial set of priority 
actions. A reasonable timeframe is then determined for the accomplishment of 
those actions. 

It is imperative that the liaison from the MSD be a part of the Planning process 
and the Policy Group. 

 

3.6.6 After Action and Corrective Action Plans 
As immediate threats to life and property subside and the need for sustained 
ESF operations diminishes, responsible individuals will be debriefed, and 
lessons learned will be documented. The General Manager or Associate 
General Manager of the MSD working with their liaison to the County ECC, will 
prepare a written After-Action Report (AAR) of their activities, which will be 
submitted to the General Manager of the MSD for review. A copy of this AAR is 
included in the Forms Annex at the end of this document. The AAR will then be 
submitted to the SLCo Emergency Manager for review. Matters requiring 
corrective action will be written up in a Corrective Action Plan (CAP). It will be 
forwarded to the Chief Elected Executive(s) of the Cities and Town affected by 
the emergency to be addressed as needed. Copies of the ICS 214 Log, After 
Action Form, and Corrective Action Plan are in the annexes section of this 
document. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



31 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

4.0 ORGANIZATION AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Representatives from the communities served by the MSD may have various roles and 
responsibilities throughout the duration of an emergency. Therefore, it is important 
the MSD General Manager, or their designee(s), the cities and Town(s) Chief Elected 
Executive(s), or his/her designee(s), understand and be trained in the command 
structure established to support response and recovery efforts. Typical duties and 
roles may also vary depending on the severity of impact, size of the incident, and 
availability of local resources. 

It is also important that the Chief Elected Executive(s) from the City or Town, 
or their designee(s), and MSD personnel, are identified and receive training in their 
responsibilities to support existing response plans, procedures and policies. 

The Chief Elected Executive(s) of the City and Town(s), or their designee(s), 
and the GM and AGM of the MSD, and any MSD personnel, should be able to: 

 
 Maintain current internal personnel notification rosters and 

standard operating procedures to perform assigned tasks 
(notifications, staffing, etc.). 

 Provide the MSD ECC and the SLCo Emergency Manager with 
current contact information and email addresses. 

 Identify potential sources of additional personnel, equipment, 
and supplies. 

 Provide for continuity of operations by taking action to accomplish 
the following: 

 Ensure orders of succession for key management positions 
are established to ensure continuous leadership and 
authority for emergency actions and decisions in emergency 
conditions. 

 Protect records, facilities, and organizational equipment 
deemed essential for sustaining government functions and 
conducting emergency operations. 

 If practical, ensure that alternate operating locations are available if 
the primary location suffers damage, becomes inaccessible, or 
requires evacuation. 

 Be trained and understand their Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) 

 Refer to their City or Town Emergency Response Guidelines or Plan 



32 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

4.1 Greater Salt Lake Municipal Services District 
The following are the MSD divisions that may be requested with support 
responsibilities as detailed by the CEMP or requested by MSD ECC and/or SLCo 
Emergency Management Division. 

 
 Planning and Zoning 

 Animal Control 

 Business Licenses 

 Code Enforcement 

 Public Works Operations and Engineering 

 Parks 

 Staff Administration and support ECC for its members 

The MSD provides these services to its member entities directly or via contract with other 

agencies, such as Parks Maintenance and Public Works Operations. The MSD should advise 

SLCo Emergency Management of any contracted services to provide support.  

4.2 County Departments and Agencies 

Salt Lake County Emergency Management 

 Maintain ESF 5 (Emergency Management) - Computer-driven 
information management programs and ensure the training of 
personnel on their operation and utilization. 

 Provide disaster management-related information using ESF 5’s 
information management and response planning computer programs. 

 Provide this information to the Chief Elected Executive(s) of the 
communities served by the MSD, to the SLCo ECC and others as 
determined by the SLCo Emergency Manager. 

 Maintain incident logs, mission-tracking logs, mutual aid request logs, 
and document all SLCo ECC briefings and meetings, plus other 
information tracking procedures. 

 Develop division procedures that increase capabilities to respond to, 
and recover from, emergencies and disasters to local jurisdictions. 

 Coordinate, supervise and manage the procurement, distribution, and 
conservation of supplies and resources available for use by SLCo 
government in supporting recover. 



33 | P a g e  
 

 

Salt Lake County Health Department 

 Provide subject matter expertise, consultation, and technical 
assistance to ESF 8 (Public Health and Medical Services) for its 
partners on disaster human services issues. 

 Provide medical staff and support to augment health services 
personnel as appropriate. 

 Provide medical care and mental health services for affected 
populations either within or outside shelter locations in accordance 
with appropriate guidelines. 

 Provide technical assistance for shelter operations related to food, 
vectors, water supply, and wastewater disposal. 

 Assist in the provision of medical supplies and services, including 
durable medical equipment. 

 Coordinate overall needs assessment and monitors potential health 
hazards. 

 Identify critical personnel and responsibilities, emergency chain of 
command, appropriate emergency notification procedures, and 
alternate work locations. 

 Endeavor to provide accurate and timely emergency public 
information. 

 
Valley Emergency Communications Center (VECC) 

 Operate as a 24-hour/7-day a week, 911 police, fire, and emergency 
medical services dispatch center. 

 Provide after-hours notification for the emergency management staff, 
responders and the media if there is threat to life, property, or safety 
of the responders. 

 
4.3 State Agencies 

Utah Division of Emergency Management 

 Coordinate the State of Utah’s response to disasters. 

 Support local emergency management efforts when local resources 
are unable to cope with the situation and when a particular capability 
or resource is required but unavailable. 

 Contact other states or the federal government for assistance if the 
state is unable to fulfill the request. 

 

 



34 | P a g e  
 

Utah National Guard 

 Supports statewide emergency management efforts when local 
resources are unable to cope with the situation and when a capability 
or resource is required but unavailable. 

 Contact other State National Guard Agencies or the federal 
government for assistance if the state is unable to fulfill the request. 

 

Utah Department of Transportation 

 Supports statewide emergency management efforts for all state 
roadways and highways within Utah. 

 

4.4 Federal Agencies 

Federal Emergency Management Agency 

 Coordinates the federal government’s role in preparing for, 
preventing, mitigating the effects of, responding to, and recovering, 
from all domestic disasters, whether natural or human-caused, 
including acts of terror. 

Department of Defense 

 Coordinates federal military forces responding to, and recovering 
from, all domestic disasters, whether natural or human-caused, 
including acts of terrorism. 

 
National Weather Service 

 Issues severe weather watches and warnings. 

4.5 Non-governmental Organizations 
The role of Non-Governmental Organizations (NGOs) in disasters is to fill the gaps 
that governmental agencies cannot perform. Disaster response and recovery 
require a coordinated effort between various public, private and NGOs in order 
to be effective. Planning must involve everyone from these multiple sectors in 
order to ensure a coordinated response and recovery effort. 

American Red Cross 

 Provide staff to work in support of mass care and sheltering activities. 

 Provide subject-matter expertise on regulations, policy, and all 
relevant ARC issues, including general mass care planning, 
preparedness, and response and recovery activities as ARC-specific 
activities in these areas. 

 Provide information on current ARC mass care activities as required. 

 Support reunification efforts through its Safe and Well web site and 



35 | P a g e  
 

in coordination with government entities as appropriate. (link here) 

 Provide public health and safety and lessen or avert the threat of an 
incident becoming a catastrophic event. 

 Provide staff and support as part of an integrated case management 
system. 

 
Faith-Based Organizations 

 Provide staff to work in support of mass care and sheltering activities. 

 Provide facilities for sheltering, mass care, and feeding. 

 Provide areas for Points of Distribution (POD). 

 This section outlines general roles and responsibilities for Municipal, 
County, State, and Federal entities related to response, recovery, 
preparedness, and mitigation operations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



36 | P a g e  
 

 

4.6 Functional Responsibilities 
This table provides an overview of emergency response functions and the 
primary (P) and secondary (S) entities that are responsible for executing those 
functions. 

  
Fu

nc
tio

n 

[M
un

ic
ip

al
ity

] E
M

 

 
M

ay
or

/M
an

ag
er

 O
ffi

ce
 

H
ea

lth
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 

H
um

an
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
ay

or
s/

M
an

ag
er

 O
ff

ic
e 

of
 F

in
an

ce
 

 
Po

lic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

 
Am

er
ic

an
 R

ed
 C

ro
ss

 (A
RC

) 

 
Sa

lv
at

io
n 

Ar
m

y 

 
Fa

ith
-B

as
ed

 N
GO

s 

 
Pr

iv
at

e 
Se

ct
or

 

Administration 
and Finance S 

     
P 

      

Agriculture and 
Natural Resources 

    
S 

       
P 

Alert and 
Notification P 

      
S S 

    

Communications S   P    S S     

Critical 
Infrastructure and 
Key Resource 
Restoration 

    
 

P 

       
 

S 

Damage 
Assessment S 

   
P 

        

Debris 
Management 

    
P 

   
S 

    

Detection And 
Monitoring S 

      
P P 

    

Direction, Control, 
and Coordination P P 

     
S S 

    

Donation 
Management 

      
P 

  
S S S S 

Emergency Public 
Information P S 

           

Energy and 
Utilities Services 

    
S 

       
P 

Evacuation and 
Shelter-in-Place 

 
S 

     
P P 

    

Fatality 
Management and 
Mortuary Services 

             



37 | P a g e  
 

Firefighting/Fire 
Protection 

        
P 

    

 

  
Fu

nc
tio

n 

[M
un

ic
ip

al
ity

] E
M

 

 
M

ay
or

/M
an

ag
er

 O
ffi

ce
 

H
ea

lth
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 

H
um

an
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
ay

or
s/

M
an

ag
er

 O
ff

ic
e 

of
 F

in
an

ce
 

 
Po

lic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

 
Am

er
ic

an
 R

ed
 C

ro
ss

 (A
RC

) 

 
Sa

lv
at

io
n 

Ar
m

y 

 
Fa

ith
-B

as
ed

 N
GO

s 

 
Pr

iv
at

e 
Se

ct
or

 

Food, Water, and 
Commodities 
Distribution 

          
P 

  

Hazardous 
Materials 

        
P 

    

Information 
Collection, 
Analysis, and 
Dissemination 

 
P 

      
 

S 

     

Law Enforcement        P      

Mass Care and 
Sheltering S 

        
P P S 

 

Mutual Aid P S            

Private Sector 
Coordination P 

           
P 

Public Health and 
Medical Services 

  
P 

          

Public Works and 
Engineering 

    
P 

        

Resource 
Management and 
Logistics 

P 
       

S 
    

Search and Rescue         P     

Transportation 
Systems and 
Resources 

    
P 

        

Volunteer 
Management S 

        
P P 

  

Warning P       S S     

 
 



38 | P a g e  
 

 
5.0 DIRECTION, CONTROL AND COORDINATION 

In the event of an emergency or disaster, the communities served by the MSD 
depend on SLCo's emergency response agencies, including EMS, fire, law 
enforcement, and public works. 

The senior leadership of the Cities or Towns will focus on information gathering 
and situational awareness needed to make informed decisions. The Chief Elected 
Executive or EM will contact the MSD Duty Officer and advise them of the incident 
and situation. After the extent of the emergency is determined, the MSD Duty 
Officer will contact the MSD General Manager or Associate General Manager to 
ascertain if the MSD ECC needs to be activated and/or contracts are overwhelmed, 
then an emergency may be declared. The MSD ECC is charged with coordinating 
efforts to represent the Cities and Towns during emergencies with the Salt Lake 
County Emergency Management Department. SLCo Emergency Management is 
the agency charged with coordinating local jurisdictions located within SLCo and 
the disaster response efforts. 

The Chief Elected Executive(s) of the Cities Towns, or their designee(s), and the 
General Manager of the MSD, or their designee(s), will help support response to 
major events, during the declared emergency, through the MSD ECC. 

The communities served by the MSD CEMP components will be coordinated as 
follows: 

1. This promulgated CEMP is effective immediately upon approval and 
implementation. 

2. All communities served by the MSD are responsible for developing and 
maintaining their own internal operating and notification procedures. 

3. All communities served by the MSD are responsible for filling any 
important vacancies, recalling personnel from leave if appropriate, and 
alerting those who are absent due to other duties or assignments, 
identified in their Emergency Response Guidelines or Plan. 

4. Unless directed otherwise, existing City or Town communications systems 
and frequencies will be employed. 

5. Unless directed otherwise, the release of information to the public or 
media will be coordinated through the MSD Communication Officer 
and/or SLCo Joint Information System (JIS) using the concepts outlined in 
ESF 15 (External Affairs). 

6. The MSD ECC will identify a representative that will respond to the County 
ECC as a liaison for the MSD. The Liaison to the County ECC will make prior 



39 | P a g e  
 

arrangements to ensure that their families are provided for in the event of 
an emergency to ensure a prompt, worry-free response and subsequent 
duty. 

 

5.1 Perform Damage Assessments 
Municipal agencies conduct damage assessments during the response to 
identify incident impacts, prioritize response and restoration activities, and 
initiate the cost recovery process. The objectives of damage assessments 
include: 
● Determining immediate life safety issues such as trapped or missing individuals 
● Assessing economic impacts 
● Identifying the scope of damages 
● Determining the status of infrastructure 
● Prioritizing response operations 
● Documenting damages 
● Affixing an estimated dollar amount to damage to justify the need for additional 

assistance 

New impacts, damages, or disruptions to infrastructure are incorporated into 
updated assessments and reported to relevant [ESFs/ISMs] and County, State, 
and federal supporting agencies. 

5.2 Rapid Damage Assessment 
A Rapid Damage Assessment (RDA) is an assessment that takes place within 
hours after an incident and focuses on lifesaving needs, imminent hazards and 
critical lifelines. This is also referred to as a ‘windshield assessment’ and will be 
gathered information using all means available. First responders, volunteers, or 
the Community Emergency Response Teams (CERT) can assist using the RDA 
Forms. Initial RDAs will focus on high- hazard areas (i.e., hospitals, schools, 
churches, etc.) and then residential structures. 

5.3 Preliminary Damage Assessment 
A preliminary damage assessment is conducted within the framework of a 
declaration process, identifies and affixes a dollar amount to government and 
commercial property, and percentage of damages to residential property. The 
preliminary damage assessment assists the SLCo Mayor and Council in 
determining resources available and additional needs that may be required. 
Damage assessments are to be conducted in the affected communities served 
by the MSD online program, which is then relayed to the ECC through the 
internet. 

A preliminary damage assessment team may be composed of personnel from 
FEMA, the state DEM, county and local officials, and the U.S. Small Business 
Administration (SBA). The team's work begins with reviewing the types of 



40 | P a g e  
 

damage or emergency costs incurred by the units of government and the impact 
to critical facilities, such as public utilities, hospitals, schools, fire, and police 
departments. They will also look at the effect on individuals and businesses, 
including the amount of damage and the number of people displaced, as well as 
the threat to health and safety caused by the event. Additional data from the 
American Red Cross (ARC) or other local voluntary agencies may also be 
reviewed. 

 

During the assessment, the team will collect estimates of the expenses and 
damages and forward to the SLCo Emergency Manager. This information is 
used by the SLCo Mayor to support a declaration of a state of emergency or 
declaration at the county level. The Governor can also utilize this information 
to support a declaration of a state of emergency request that will outline the 
cost of response efforts, such as emergency personnel overtime, other 
emergency services shortfalls, community damage, citizenry affected and 
criteria to illustrate that the needed response efforts are beyond state and 
local recovery capabilities. The information gathered during the assessment 
will help the Governor certify that the damage exceeds state and local 
resources. 

Preliminary damage assessments also assist the Chief Elected Executive(s) of 
the communities served by the MSD, the opportunity to assess the damage in 
their City or Town. The Chief Elected Executive(s) of the Cities or Towns  
affected by an emergency, or their designee(s), working with the MSD ECC, 
will work with SLCo Emergency Management to assemble assessments in the 
ECC environment. 

 
5.4 Response Procedures 
If the MSD ECC is activated, a representative from the MSD ECC will contact the 
SLCo ECC within two hours. The SLCo Emergency Manager may also request a 
representative from the MSD as a liaison. Emergency response actions may be 
undertaken and coordinated, with or without activation of the MSD ECC or the 
City and Town activating their CEMP. This will depend on the severity of the 
impending or actual situation. Response priorities will focus on life safety; 
then basic survival issues (water, food, basic medical care, shelter); restoration 
of the City or Town vital infrastructures (water/waste systems, electrical grid, 
phones, roads); clean up and emergency repairs; and then recovery. The Joint 
Information Center (JIC) will organize notifications to the public, business 
community, and other parties of developments and activities via the local 
media. 

 

 



41 | P a g e  
 

5.5 Response & Recovery 
The SLCo ECC, working with the MSD ECC will support a needs assessment 
soon after a disaster occurs. The needs assessment identifies the resources 
required to respond to and recover from the disaster. The assessment will form 
the basis for notification and resource requests from SLCo, State, and Federal 
assistance. The MSD ECC and the SLCo ECC will compile damage assessment 
information to determine the fiscal impact and dollar loss associated with a 
disaster. Damage assessment information is needed to secure a presidential 
disaster declaration; however, it is not always required before federal assistance 
is requested in a disaster. 

 

5.6 Continuity of Operations 
Continuity of Operations (COOP) is a function of emergency management and 
is vital during a community emergency or disaster situation. COOP is defined as 
the preservation and maintenance of the local civil government’s ability to carry 
out its constitutional responsibilities. All the communities served by the MSD 
shall have a Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP). 

 

6.0  COMMUNICATIONS 
Emergency communications are defined as the ability of emergency responders 
to exchange information via data, voice, and video. Emergency response at all 
levels of government must have interoperable and seamless communications to 
manage emergencies, establish command and control, maintain situational 
awareness, and function under a common operating picture for a broad 
spectrum of incidents. 

Emergency communications consist of three primary elements: 
1. Operability: The ability of emergency responders to establish and sustain 
communications in support of the operation. 
2. Interoperability: The ability of emergency responders to communicate 
among jurisdictions, disciplines, and levels of government using a variety of 
communication mediums. System operability is required for system 
interoperability. 
3. Continuity of communications: The ability of emergency response agencies 
to maintain communications in the event of damage to or destruction of the 
primary infrastructure. 

 
 
 
 
 



42 | P a g e  
 

7.0 ADMINISTRATION, FINANCE, AND LOGISTICS 
7.1 Administration Information 
The Chief Elected Executive(s) of the communities served by the MSD, and the 
MSD ECC, will keep narratives and operational journals of response actions 
during an emergency in which they are affected. 

The Chief Elected Executive(s) of the City or Town, working with the MSD ECC, 
are responsible for implementing their CEMP’s. They will work with and 
support the MSD ECC and the SLCo Emergency Manager with any 
administrative and logistical needs for their jurisdiction. This will assist in the 
preparation of a list of resources necessary in carrying out their emergency 
responsibilities. 

 
7.2  Records, Preservation and Restoration 

All affected communities served by the MSD, as well as the MSD, must ensure 
the protection of their records so normal operations can continue after the 
emergency. Such records may also be vital to the rapid recovery from the 
effects of an emergency. The communities that are served by the MSD, and are 
affected, will support any information technology from their agency with the 
maintenance of plans for the safety, recovery, and restoration of the data and 
telecommunication systems during a disaster. 

 
7.3 Reports and Records 
The planning and activation of an effective emergency response require timely 
and accurate reporting of information and the maintenance of records on a 
continual basis. The Chief Elected Executive(s) of the communities served by the 
MSD and the MSD ECC if activated, will keep narrative and written log-type 
records of all actions that happened during an operational period, using the ICS 
214 form. The General Manager of the MSD or the Command Staff of the MSD 
ECC, will also keep a narrative written log-type records of all actions that 
happened within the MSD ECC and the City or Town, using the ICS 214 form. 
These reports are to include any situation reports, request for assistance, and 
damage assessments. Copies are to be sent to the SLCo Emergency Manager in 
a timely manner. 

The City or Towns and the MSD ECC Command Staff will use pre-established 
bookkeeping and accounting methods to track and maintain records of 
expenditures and obligations. 

 

 



43 | P a g e  
 

The logs and records will form the basis for status reports to the county and the 
state. At a minimum, daily situation reports from both the City and Towns 
affected, and the MSD, will be forwarded to the county ECC during a local 
activation. 

 

7.4 Financial Management 
The General Manager of the MSD or their designee(s) and the MSD ECC 
Command Staff, working with the Chief Elected Executive(s) of the Cities and 
Towns affected, will track all expenditures staff time, and injuries during 
the time of the disaster or emergency in their jurisdiction. The expenditure 
tracking form will be sent to the County Finance/Administration Section of the 
County ECC, with a copy to be kept by the MSD ECC Finance/Administration 
Section Chief. 
 
The Finance/Administration Section Chief at the MSD ECC will ensure all 
documentation is complete, recorded on the appropriate forms and proper in all 
respects. If a community served by the MSD, is federally declared, the SLCo 
auditor will submit for reimbursement. If not declared, the documentation will 
serve as a recorded history of activity with expenditures. 

 
7.5 Accounting 
The General Manager of the MSD or the Finance/Administration Section Chief 
of the MSD ECC will maintain a complete and accurate account of emergency 
expenditures and obligations, to include personnel and equipment costs. Such 
records are essential to identify and document funds for which no federal 
reimbursement will be requested but might be eligible for reimbursement 
under major emergency project applications. When federal public assistance is 
provided under the Disaster Relief Act, local projects approved by FEMA are 
subject to state and federal audits. 

The MSD finance division will coordinate the reimbursement documentation 
for the FEMA Public Assistance Program during a presidentially declared 
disaster for the county government. 

 
7.6 Fiscal Agreements 
The Finance/Administration Section Chief will keep a clear statement of the 
agreements between all major agencies responding to an emergency 
concerning payment or reimbursement for personnel services rendered, 
equipment costs, and expenditures of materials used in response to an 
emergency is mandatory. 



44 | P a g e  
 

 
7.7 Logistics 
Assumptions: 
● The communities served by the MSD have no local logistical capabilities. 
● The MSD has some logistical assets that are under contract with SLCo and may 

be requested by SLCo Emergency Management. 
● The MSD will supply SLCo Emergency Management a copy of the list of logistical 

assets that are available from the MSD. 

SLCo Emergency Management maintains current resource information on 
supplies, equipment, facilities, and skilled personnel available for emergency 
response and recovery operations. Unless covered in a mutual aid 
agreement/memorandum of understanding, emergency resources may not be 
sent outside the county unless the SLCo Mayor, the SLCo Emergency Manager, 
or other designated representative grants approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



45 | P a g e  
 

8.0 PLAN MAINTENANCE AND DISTRIBUTION 
The MSD General Manager, or his/her designee(s), and the MSD Board of 
Trustees are responsible for the overall maintenance (review and update) of 
this CEMP and for ensuring that changes and revisions are prepared, 
coordinated, published and distributed. 

This plan shall be reviewed annually or after the following events: 
● A major incident 
● A change in operational resources (i.e., policy, personnel, organizational 

structures, management process, facilities, equipment) 
● A formal update of planning guidance or standards 
● A change in elected officials 
● Each activation of the MSD CEMP and of the MSD ECC 
● Major exercises 
● A change in the jurisdiction’s demographics or hazard or threat profile 
● A change in the acceptability of various risks 
● The enactment of new or amended laws or ordinances. 

 
If the review does not generate significant changes to the CEMP, no new copies 
of this document are to be distributed. A copy will be kept with the MSD for 
their records. 

If significant changes are required, then the CEMP will be updated, and copies 
will be sent to each City and Town Council for re-promulgation. 

 

 
8.1 Emergency Operations Plan Maintenance 
To maintain CEMP capabilities and be prepared for any emergency or disaster 
that may affect communities served by the MSD, the General Manager of the 
MSD, or his designee(s), has developed and maintains a multi-year strategy. 
Table 10-1 provides a standardized list of activities necessary to monitor the 
dynamic elements of the MSD CEMP and the frequency of their occurrence. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



46 | P a g e  
 

Table 8-1 MSD - CEMP Maintenance Standards 

 
 
 

Tasks Frequency 

Plan update and 
certification 

• Review entire plan for accuracy. 
• Incorporate lessons learned and 

changes in policy and philosophy. 

Annually 

Train new Municipal 
Services District 
(MSD) 
Emergency 
Management 

• Conduct MSD CEMP training for new 
management staff. 

Within 90 days 
of appointment 

Orient new policy 
officials and senior 
leadership 

• Brief officials on the existence and 
concepts of the MSD CEMP. 

Within 90 days 
of appointment 

Plan and conduct 
exercises 

• Conduct internal CEMP exercises. 
• Conduct joint exercises with the 

MSD, Cities, Towns and County 
emergency personnel. 

• Support and participate in state-level 
and local-level exercises. 

Semiannually, annually 
or as needed. 



47 | P a g e  
 

9.0 AUTHORITIES AND REFERENCES 
9.1 Authorities 
Presidential Policy Directive 5 (PPD 5), Management of Domestic Incidents 

Presidential Policy Directive 8 (PPD 8), Enhance the country's security and 
resilience against emerging security challenges, threats, and risks, specifically 
acts of terrorism, natural disasters, and cyberattacks. 

 
Federal Authorities 
● National Flood Insurance Act (42 U.S.C 4027) Executive Order 12146 of July 20, 

1979 
● Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (Public Law 93-

288, as amended) 
● National Response Framework (NFR) Policy 1410, Ordinance 2.28.160 and 

2.28.170 
 
The authorities under which the MSD CEMP may be activated include the following: 

State of Utah 
● Utah Code § 53-2a Emergency Management Act 
● State of Utah, Emergency Operations Plan Salt Lake County 
● Salt Lake County Municipal Code § 2.86 Emergency Response and Recovery 
● Salt Lake County Emergency Declaration 

 
Greater Salt Lake Municipal Services District 

● MSD Emergency Coordination Center (ECC) Activation and Response Plan 
● MSD Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan 

 
Cities or Town 

● Local Emergency Declaration 
● City or Town CEMP 

9.2  Supporting Documents/Plans 
● Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 501, National Incident 

Management System (NIMS) 

● Federal Response Plan 

● FEMA 501-3, NIMS Basic - Preparedness 

● FEMA 501-7, NIMS Basic - Ongoing Management and Maintenance 

● Comprehensive Preparedness Guide (CPG) 101 

● State of Utah Emergency Operations Plan 



48 | P a g e  
 

● State of Utah Hazard Mitigation Plan 

● Salt Lake County Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP) 

2023 

● Salt Lake County Hazard Mitigation Plan 2019 

● Town of Brighton Hazard Mitigation Annex 

● Town of Brighton Emergency Operations Plan 

● The City of Kearns Hazard Mitigation Annex 

● The City of Kearns Emergency Operations Plan 

● The Town of Copperton Hazard Mitigation Annex 

● The Town of Copperton Emergency Operations Plan 

● White City Hazard Mitigation Annex 

● White City Emergency Operations Plan 

● Emigration Canyon City Hazard Mitigation Annex 

● Emigration Canyon City Emergency Operations Plan 

● Magna City Hazard Mitigation Annex 

● Magna City Emergency Operations Plan 

● Greater Salt Lake Municipal Services District Emergency Coordination 

Center Activation and Response Plan (MSD ECC Plan) 

● Greater Salt Lake Municipal Services District Comprehensive Emergency 

Management Plan (MSD CEMP) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



49 | P a g e  
 

 

10 .0 GLOSSARY & LIST OF EMERGENCY SUPPORT FUNCTIONS 
 

All-Hazards: Describes all incidents, natural or human-caused, that warrant action to protect life, 
property, environment, and public health or safety and to minimize disruptions of government, 
social or economic activities. 

Emergency Management: The preparation for, mitigation of, response to, and recovery from 
emergencies and disasters. Specific emergency management responsibilities include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

 Reducing vulnerability of Utah people and communities to damage, injury, and loss of 
life and property, resulting from natural, technological or human-caused emergencies or 
hostile military or paramilitary action 

 Preparing prompt and efficient response and recovery to protect lives and property 
affected by emergencies 

 Responding to emergencies using all systems, plans, and resources necessary to preserve 
the health, safety, and welfare of persons or property affected by the emergency 

 Providing for the rapid and orderly start of restoration and rehabilitation of persons and 
property affected by emergencies 

Salt Lake County Emergency Manager: A staff member who oversees the Salt Lake 
Emergency Management Division and serves as the manager when the Salt Lake Emergency 
Coordination Center is activated. 

Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC): A congressionally ratified organization 
that provides form and structure to interstate mutual aid. Through EMAC, a disaster-affected 
state can request and receive assistance from other member states quickly and efficiently, 
resolving two key issues up front, liability, and reimbursement. 

Emergency Coordination Center (ECC): A designated site from which public, private or 
voluntary agency officials can coordinate emergency operations in support of on-scene 
responders. 

Emergency Support Functions (ESFs): A functional emergency management responsibility 
established to facilitate assistance required during mitigation, preparedness, response, and 
recovery to save lives, protect health and property, and maintain public safety. 

ESF Assignment Matrix: Organizational grouping of all primary and support ESF agencies. 

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA): Agency of the U.S. government 
tasked with disaster mitigation, preparedness, response and recovery planning. 

 



50 | P a g e  
 

Finance/Administration Section: Responsible for tracking incident costs and 
reimbursement accounting. 

Homeland Security Presidential Directive (HSPD)-5: Enhances the ability of the United 
States to manage domestic incidents by establishing a single, comprehensive National 
Incident Management System. 

Incident Command System (ICS): An all-hazard, on-scene functional management system that 
establishes common standards in organization, terminology and procedures. 

Joint Information Center (JIC): The primary location for the coordination of media relations 
located in or near the EOC. 

Joint Information System (JIS): Provides the public with timely and accurate incident information 
and unified public messages. This system employs JICs and brings incident communicators 
together during an incident to develop, coordinate, and deliver a unified message. This will 
ensure that federal, state, and local levels of government are releasing information during an 
incident. 

Local Government: Local municipal governments, the school board and other government 
authorities created under county or municipal legislation. 

Local Nonprofits: Nonprofit agencies active in providing local community services that can either 
provide assistance during an emergency or would require assistance to continue providing their 
services to the community. United Way agencies are an example of local nonprofits under this 
category. 

Logistics Section: Provides facilities, services, and materials (including personnel to operate the 
requested equipment) for incident support. 

Municipality: Legally constituted municipalities are authorized and encouraged to create 
municipal emergency management programs. Municipal emergency management programs 
shall coordinate their activities with those of the county emergency management agency. 
Municipalities without emergency management programs shall be served by their respective 
county agencies. If a municipality elects to establish an emergency management program, it 
must comply with all laws, rules, and requirements applicable to county emergency management 
agencies. Each municipal CEMP must be consistent with, and subject to, the applicable county 
CEMP. In addition, each municipality must coordinate requests for state or federal emergency 
response assistance with its county. 

This requirement does not apply to requests for reimbursement under federal public disaster 
assistance programs. 

National Incident Management System (NIMS): A systematic, proactive approach to guide 
departments and agencies at all levels of government, nongovernmental organizations and the 
private sector, to work seamlessly to prevent, protect against, respond to, recover from and 



51 | P a g e  
 

mitigate the effects of incidents, regardless of cause, size, location or complexity, to reduce the 
loss of life and property and harm to the environment. 

National Response Framework (NRF): The guiding principles that enable all response partners 
to prepare for and provide a unified national response to disasters and emergencies. It 
establishes a comprehensive, national, all-hazards approach to domestic incident response. 

Operations Section: Directs and coordinates all operations and assists the emergency 
management bureau chief in the development of incident operations. 

Planning Section: Responsible for collecting, evaluating, disseminating, and using information 
about the development of the incident and the status of resources. 

Primary ESF Agency: Agency assigned primary responsibility to manage and coordinate a specific 
ESF. Primary agencies are designated based on their having the most authorities 

resources, capabilities or expertise relative to the accomplishment of the specific ESF. 

Primary ESF Coordinator: The entity with management oversight for that particular ESF. The 
coordinator has ongoing responsibilities throughout the preparedness, response, and recovery 
phases of incident management. Responsibilities of the ESF coordinator include the following: 

 Coordinating before, during and after an incident, including pre-incident planning and 
coordination 

 Maintaining ongoing contact with ESF primary and support agencies 

 Conducting periodic ESF meetings and conference calls 

 Coordinating efforts with corresponding private sector organizations 

 Coordinating ESF activities relating to catastrophic incident planning and critical 
infrastructure preparedness, as appropriate 

Policy Group: Consists of executive decision-makers who must collaborate to manage the 
consequences of the disaster. This group makes critical strategic decisions to manage the 
emergency. 

Public Information: Emergency information that is gathered, prepared and coordinated for 
dissemination during a disaster or major event. 

Safety/Security: Safety/security is monitored, and measures are developed for ensuring a safe 
and secure environment in which to run emergency operations. 

State liaison: Individual appointed by the Utah Department of Emergency Management to act 
as liaison during emergencies to coordinate state actions for providing effective coordination and 
communications during the event. 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs): States in general terms what the guideline is 
expected to accomplish. 



52 | P a g e  
 

Support ESF Agency: Entities with specific capabilities or resources that support the primary 
agency in executing the mission of the ESFs. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



53 | P a g e  
 

ESFs and their roles in Emergency Management 
The 15 Emergency Support Functions (ESFs) in emergency management are organized into key areas of support 
that federal, state, and local agencies provide during an emergency or disaster. Each ESF has a specific role and 
function, ensuring a coordinated response to various aspects of an incident. 
 
1. ESF #1 - Transportation 
Description: Supports the restoration and management of transportation infrastructure, including roads, bridges, 
and public transit systems. It also coordinates the evacuation and movement of people and resources. 
 
2. ESF #2 - Communications 
Description: Ensures the availability and reliability of communication systems, including telecommunications, 
information technology, and cybersecurity. It facilitates communication among agencies, responders, and the 
public. 
 
3. ESF #3 - Public Works and Engineering 
Description: Provides engineering expertise, construction management, and infrastructure repair, including 
roads, bridges, public buildings, and utilities. It also supports debris removal and restoration of essential services. 
 
4. ESF #4 - Firefighting 
Description: Manages and coordinates firefighting operations and resources, including the suppression of 
wildfires and structural fires. It also provides support to local firefighting efforts during emergencies. 
 
5. ESF #5 - Information and Planning 
Description: Supports overall coordination and planning efforts during an emergency, including the collection, 
analysis, and dissemination of critical information. It ensures that decision-makers have timely and accurate 
information. 
 
6. ESF #6 - Mass Care, Emergency Assistance, Temporary Housing, and Human Services 
Description: Coordinates the provision of mass care services, including shelter, feeding, and emergency first aid. 
It also provides support for temporary housing, family reunification, and human services. 
 
7. ESF #7 - Logistics and Resource Support 
Description: Provides logistics management and resource support, including the acquisition, transportation, and 
distribution of essential supplies and equipment. It ensures that resources are available and accessible during an 
emergency. 
 
8. ESF #8 - Public Health and Medical Services 
Description: Manages public health and medical services during an emergency, including medical care, public 
health surveillance, mental health services, and mass casualty management. It also addresses environmental 
health and the safety of food and water supplies. 
 



54 | P a g e  
 

9. ESF #9 - Search and Rescue 
Description: Coordinates search and rescue operations for individuals trapped or missing during an emergency, 
including urban, wilderness, and water rescues. It also supports the recovery of human remains. 
 
10. ESF #10 - Oil and Hazardous Materials Response 
Description: Manages and coordinates the response to oil spills and hazardous materials incidents, including the 
containment, cleanup, and disposal of hazardous substances. It also addresses the environmental impact of such 
incidents. 
 
11. ESF #11 - Agriculture and Natural Resources 
Description: Supports the protection and restoration of agricultural resources, including food safety, animal and 
plant health, and natural resources. It also coordinates the provision of food assistance during emergencies. 
 
12. ESF #12 - Energy 
Description: Coordinates the restoration and protection of energy infrastructure, including electricity, natural 
gas, and petroleum. It ensures the continued availability of energy resources and supports the stabilization of 
energy supplies. 
 
13. ESF #13 - Public Safety and Security 
Description: Provides public safety and security support, including law enforcement, crowd control, and traffic 
management. It also coordinates the protection of critical infrastructure and the enforcement of emergency 
orders. 
 
14. ESF #14 - Cross-Sector Business and Infrastructure 
Description: Facilitates the restoration and resilience of critical infrastructure sectors, including communications, 
energy, transportation, and financial services. It also coordinates the protection and recovery of private sector 
assets. 
 
15. ESF #15 - External Affairs 
Description: Manages public information, media relations, and community outreach during an emergency. It 
ensures that accurate and timely information is provided to the public, stakeholders, and the media, and 
coordinates messaging across agencies. 
 
These ESF provide a comprehensive framework for organizing and coordinating response efforts across multiple 
sectors and levels of government. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



55 | P a g e  
 

 

11 .0 ACRONYMS 
 

 

 
ARES – Amateur Radio Emergency Services COG – Continuity of Government 

CFR – Code of Federal Regulations COOP – Continuity of Operations Plan  

ECC – Emergency Coordination Center 

EMAC – Emergency Management Assistance Compact EMS - Emergency 

Medical Services 

EOC - Emergency Operations Center 

EOP - Emergency Operations Plan  

ESFs - Emergency Support Functions 

FEMA - Federal Emergency Management Agency MSD – Greater Salt Lake 

Municipal Services District Haz Mat - Hazardous Materials 

HSPD – Homeland Security Presidential Directive ICS - Incident Command 

System 

ICP - Incident Command Post  

ISM – Incident Support Model 

JIC - Joint Information Center JIS – Joint Information System 

NIMS – National Incident Management System NRF – National Response 

Framework 

SARA – Superfund Amendment and Reauthorization Act SOP – Standard 

Operating Procedures 

TRAX – Light Rail System  

UVDD—Utah Valley Dispatch District 



56 | P a g e  
 

VECC – Valley Emergency Communications Center 

WFZ – Wasatch Fault Zone or WVFZ – Wasatch Valley Fault Zone 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



57 | P a g e  
 

12.0  ANNEXES 
 

 

1. The Town of Brighton 

a. Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP) 

b. Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) 

c. Hazard Mitigation Plan  

d. City Map 

e. Evacuation Map/Zones 

2. Copperton 

a. Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP) 

b. Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) 

c. Hazard Mitigation Plan 

d. City Map 

e. Evacuation Map/Zones 

3. Emigration Canyon  

a. Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP) 

b. Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) 

c. Hazard Mitigation Plan 

d. City map 

e. Evacuation Map/Zones 

4. The City of Kearns 

a. Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP) 

b. Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) 

c. Hazard Mitigation Plan 



58 | P a g e  
 

d. City Map 

e. Evacuation Map/Zones 

5. Magna City 

a. Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP) 

b. Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) 

c. Hazard Mitigation Plan 

d. City Map 

e. Evacuation Map/Zones 

6. White City 

a. Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP) 

b. Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) 

c. Hazard Mitigation Plan 

d. City map 

e. Evacuation Map/Zones 

7. Unincorporated Salt Lake County 
 
The Unincorporated areas of Salt Lake County are supported directly by Salt Lake County Emergency 
Management and associated County plans, such as the County CEMP, COOP, Hazard Mitigation Plan and other 
plans.  Those plans, and their annexes, may be obtained from Salt Lake County Emergency Management or 
may be included in this MSD CEMP annex for reference as needed.   
 

  

 


	02-25-2025 Magna CC Meeting Agenda.pdf
	02-11-2025 Magna CC Meeting Minutes - DRAFT.pdf
	02-25-2025 Magna CC Meeting - Item 8A - Magna Financial Report 2025 01 31 FY 2025.pdf
	02-25-2025 Magna CC Meeting - Item 8A - Sanderson Budget Review - UPDATED.pdf
	02-25-2025 Magna CC Meeting - Item 8C - Presentation MSDCEMPproposalPPNEW.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Incident Flow/Management
	Slide Number 3
	Municipal Planner Position
	Limitations of the current Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)
	Benefits of the Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP)
	What is  a "CEMP"?
	What is in a "CEMP"?
	Common Questions regarding a CEMP
	Benefits of the Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP)
	Call to Action 

	02-25-2025 Magna CC Meeting - Item 8C - Resolution R2025-03.pdf
	02-25-2025 Resolution R2025-03.pdf
	02-25-2025 Magna CC Meeting - MSD CEMP FINAL_10.1.2024.pdf
	i. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	Navigating the Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan

	ii. PROMULGATION
	iii.  RECORD OF DISTRIBUTION
	iii.  RECORD OF REVISION
	THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

	1.0 BASE PLAN INTRODUCTION
	1.1 Purpose
	1.2 Scope
	1.3 Hazard Overview

	2.0 ASSUMPTIONS
	2.1 Activation
	2.1.1 Involve the Community in Emergency Management
	2.1.2 Improve Public Safety through Education and Outreach

	2.2 Activation Phase
	Key Activities
	2.2.1 Assess the Emergency
	2.3 Determine Whether Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan Activation is Required
	Warn the Community About Imminent Threats

	2.3.1 Convene Policy Group and Senior Leadership
	2.3.2 Determine Which Emergency Facilities to Use
	Decide Which Facilities are Necessary to Support Response

	2.3.3 Staff the Emergency Coordination enter (ECC)


	The 2019 Utah Hazard Mitigation Plan and the 2019 Salt Lake County Hazard Mitigation Plan served as the guidelines for mitigation operations in the State of Utah in general, SLCo, and the communities served by the MSD, specifically. These plans help t...
	3.CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS
	3.1 Normal Operations
	3.2 Declaring a Local State of Emergency
	3.3 Coordinate with City and Town Municipality Partners
	3.4 Preparedness
	Key Activities

	3.5 Develop Plans for Future Emergencies
	Maintain Plans that Support Response and Recovery
	3.5.1 Update Plans Regularly
	3.6 MSD Emergency Coordination Center Activation
	3.6.1 Requesting Mutual Aid
	3.6.2   Salt Lake  County Emergency Coordination Center Activation
	3. Level I – Full-Scale Activation
	4. Level II - Limited Activation
	5. Level III – Monitoring Activation

	3.6.3 Emergency Support Functions
	3.6.4 Decision Making in the Salt Lake County ECC
	3.6.5 Salt Lake County ECC Action Planning
	3.6.6 After Action and Corrective Action Plans
	4.1 Greater Salt Lake Municipal Services District
	 Planning and Zoning

	4.2 County Departments and Agencies
	Salt Lake County Emergency Management
	 Maintain ESF 5 (Emergency Management) - Computer-driven information management programs and ensure the training of personnel on their operation and utilization.
	 Provide disaster management-related information using ESF 5’s information management and response planning computer programs.
	 Provide this information to the Chief Elected Executive(s) of the communities served by the MSD, to the SLCo ECC and others as determined by the SLCo Emergency Manager.
	 Maintain incident logs, mission-tracking logs, mutual aid request logs, and document all SLCo ECC briefings and meetings, plus other information tracking procedures.
	 Develop division procedures that increase capabilities to respond to, and recover from, emergencies and disasters to local jurisdictions.
	 Coordinate, supervise and manage the procurement, distribution, and conservation of supplies and resources available for use by SLCo government in supporting recover.
	Salt Lake County Health Department
	 Provide subject matter expertise, consultation, and technical assistance to ESF 8 (Public Health and Medical Services) for its partners on disaster human services issues.
	 Provide medical staff and support to augment health services personnel as appropriate.
	 Provide medical care and mental health services for affected populations either within or outside shelter locations in accordance with appropriate guidelines.
	 Provide technical assistance for shelter operations related to food, vectors, water supply, and wastewater disposal.
	 Assist in the provision of medical supplies and services, including durable medical equipment.
	 Coordinate overall needs assessment and monitors potential health hazards.
	 Identify critical personnel and responsibilities, emergency chain of command, appropriate emergency notification procedures, and alternate work locations.
	 Endeavor to provide accurate and timely emergency public information.
	Valley Emergency Communications Center (VECC)
	 Operate as a 24-hour/7-day a week, 911 police, fire, and emergency medical services dispatch center.
	 Provide after-hours notification for the emergency management staff, responders and the media if there is threat to life, property, or safety of the responders.

	4.3 State Agencies
	Utah Division of Emergency Management
	 Coordinate the State of Utah’s response to disasters.
	 Support local emergency management efforts when local resources are unable to cope with the situation and when a particular capability or resource is required but unavailable.
	 Contact other states or the federal government for assistance if the state is unable to fulfill the request.
	Utah National Guard
	 Supports statewide emergency management efforts when local resources are unable to cope with the situation and when a capability or resource is required but unavailable.
	 Contact other State National Guard Agencies or the federal government for assistance if the state is unable to fulfill the request.
	Utah Department of Transportation
	 Supports statewide emergency management efforts for all state roadways and highways within Utah.

	4.4 Federal Agencies
	Federal Emergency Management Agency
	 Coordinates the federal government’s role in preparing for, preventing, mitigating the effects of, responding to, and recovering, from all domestic disasters, whether natural or human-caused, including acts of terror.
	Department of Defense
	 Coordinates federal military forces responding to, and recovering from, all domestic disasters, whether natural or human-caused, including acts of terrorism.
	National Weather Service
	 Issues severe weather watches and warnings.

	4.5 Non-governmental Organizations
	American Red Cross
	 Provide staff to work in support of mass care and sheltering activities.
	 Provide subject-matter expertise on regulations, policy, and all relevant ARC issues, including general mass care planning, preparedness, and response and recovery activities as ARC-specific activities in these areas.
	 Provide information on current ARC mass care activities as required.
	 Support reunification efforts through its Safe and Well web site and in coordination with government entities as appropriate. (link here)
	 Provide public health and safety and lessen or avert the threat of an incident becoming a catastrophic event.
	 Provide staff and support as part of an integrated case management system.
	Faith-Based Organizations
	 Provide staff to work in support of mass care and sheltering activities.
	 Provide facilities for sheltering, mass care, and feeding.
	 Provide areas for Points of Distribution (POD).
	 This section outlines general roles and responsibilities for Municipal, County, State, and Federal entities related to response, recovery, preparedness, and mitigation operations.

	4.6 Functional Responsibilities

	5.0 DIRECTION, CONTROL AND COORDINATION
	5.1 Perform Damage Assessments
	5.2 Rapid Damage Assessment
	5.3 Preliminary Damage Assessment
	5.4 Response Procedures
	5.5 Response & Recovery
	5.6 Continuity of Operations

	6.0  COMMUNICATIONS
	7.0 ADMINISTRATION, FINANCE, AND LOGISTICS
	7.1 Administration Information
	7.2  Records, Preservation and Restoration
	7.3 Reports and Records
	7.4 Financial Management
	7.5 Accounting
	7.6 Fiscal Agreements
	7.7 Logistics

	8.0 PLAN MAINTENANCE AND DISTRIBUTION
	8.1 Emergency Operations Plan Maintenance

	9.0 AUTHORITIES AND REFERENCES
	9.1 Authorities
	Federal Authorities

	9.2  Supporting Documents/Plans

	10 .0 GLOSSARY & LIST OF EMERGENCY SUPPORT FUNCTIONS
	11 .0 ACRONYMS
	12.0  ANNEXES






